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Management Report 
 

Dear Shareholder, 

In accordance with the applicable legal provisions, the Board of Directors submits to your 

appreciation the Annual Report of PT Portugal, SGPS, S.A. for the year 2014. 

 

Introduction 

PT Portugal, SGPS, SA ("Company" or "PT Portugal") and its subsidiaries (“Group” or “PT 

Portugal Group”) are engaged in rendering telecommunications and multimedia services in 

Portugal, Brazil and other countries in Africa and Asia. 

PT Portugal was incorporated on 28 March 2006, following the reorganization of Portugal 

Telecom Group’s ("PT Group") businesses by geographical areas. On 5 May 2014, as 

explained below, Portugal Telecom, SGPS, S.A. (“Portugal Telecom” or “PT SGPS”) subscribed 

a share capital increase of Oi, S.A. (“Oi”) through the contribution in kind of its 100% interest in 

PT Portugal and, as a result, PT Portugal is since then a wholly-owned subsidiary of Oi, a 

telecommunications operator with its head office in Rio de Janeiro, Brazil. 

On 1 December 2014, Oi has entered into an exclusivity agreement with Altice, S.A. for the 

purpose of reaching an agreement regarding the final terms of the disposal of PT Portugal. On 8 

December 2014, the Board of Directors of Oi concluded the approval of the general terms and 

conditions for the disposal of the total shares of PT Portugal to Altice Portugal, S.A., a wholly-

owned subsidiary of Altice, S.A.. On 22 January 2015, this sale was approved at the General 

Shareholders’ Meeting of PT SGPS, although is still pending the approval by the competition 

authorities. 

The Group’s consolidated management report provides a detailed explanation of the 

businesses engaged by the different Group companies for the year ended 31 December 2014, 

including the risks, uncertainties and futures prospects regarding those businesses. As such, in 

what relates to these matters, we propose to the shareholders the analysis of that report. 

 

Legal Information 

 There are no outstanding amounts overdue to the Portuguese State and the 

Portuguese Social Security System. 

 The Company did not enter into any material businesses or transactions with the 

members of its Board of Directors and supervision. 
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Financial review 

The following financial review relates only to the standalone financial statements and should be 

read together with those financial statements and respective notes. The financial statements are 

presented in euros and were prepared in accordance with Portuguese accounting system, 

which are part of the Accounting Standards System ("SNC"). 

The standalone earnings of PT Portugal for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are 

as follows: 

  

Operating income reflects mainly gains and losses in affiliated companies and net other 

expenses and losses which in 2014 include a loss of Euro 114 million corresponding to the 

effect of remeasuring the investment in Rio Forte debt to the fair value of the shares of Oi to be 

received in connection with an agreement entered into with PT SGPS for the exchange of the 

referred Rio Forte debt held by PT Portugal and PT Finance. Losses in affiliated companies 

were negatively affected by losses of Meo Comunicações and PT Finance, amounting to Euro 

2,130 million and Euro 419 million, respectively. Losses of Meo Comunicações include an 

impairment loss of Euro 867 million recorded to adjust the carrying value of Portuguese 

businesses to the corresponding recoverable amount under the Altice offer, and a loss of Euro 

950 million recorded in connection with the sale to PT SGPS of the investment in Bratel BV, the 

entity that held indirectly the investment in Oi. Losses of PT Finance reflect basically a loss of 

Euro 402 million corresponding to the effect of remeasuring its investment in Rio Forte debt. 

Financing expenses include interest paid under financings transferred from Portugal Telecom to 

PT Portugal, namely commercial paper, bond loans and other bank loans, net of interest 

received from subsidiaries. 

In relation to income taxes, the gain recorded in 2014 corresponds to the gain obtained in 

connection with the tax consolidation regime that the Company adopted in 2014 following the 

internal restructuring of Portugal Telecom Group. 

  

Income Statement Euro

2014 2013
Restated

Equity in earnings/(losses) of affiliated companies (2,503,770,764) (140,913,374)
Wages and salaries (2,233,668) (3,209,828)
Other expenses and losses, net (128,377,826) (340,040)

OPERATING INCOME (BEFORE FINANCING EXPENSES AND TAXES) (2,634,382,258) (144,463,242)
Expenses of financing, net (16,840,734) 15,520,768 
Income taxes 71,659,193 (3,991,488)

NET INCOME (2,579,563,799) (132,933,962)
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The balance sheets of PT Portugal as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as follows: 

  
 

Non-current assets include (i) the financial investments in subsidiaries, amounting to Euro 1,487 

million and Euro 5,761 million as at 31 December 2014 and 2013, respectively, including the 

interests recorded under the equity method of accounting, goodwill and paid-in capital, and (ii) 

loans granted to those subsidiaries, amounting to Euro 9,687 million and Euro 3,872 million, 

respectively. As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, current assets include mainly (1) interest 

accrued relating to the above mentioned loans granted to subsidiaries (Euro 104 million and 

Euro 89 million, respectively), the carrying value of the Rio Forte debt (Euro 86 million) based 

on the quote of Oi’s shares to be received in connection with the agreement entered into with 

PT SGPS, and (3) cash and bank deposits (Euro 82 million and Euro 0.003 million, 

respectively). 

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, total liabilities includes mainly (1) loans obtained, 

amounting to Euro 8,679 million and Euro 3,635 million, respectively, an increase explained 

primarily by the effects of the internal restructuring of Portugal Telecom Group, in connection 

with which PT SGPS transferred certain loans to PT Portugal, (2) deferred capital gains 

recorded in connection with intercompany sale of financial investments, amounting to Euro 

1,494 million and Euro 1,521 million, respectively, and (3) provisions for financial investments 

relating to entities presenting a negative shareholders’ equity, amounting to Euro 203 million as 

at 31 December 2014, which relate to the investments in Meo Comunicações and PT Finance, 

as a result of the above mentioned losses. 

Total shareholders’ equity amounted to Euro 1,197 million and Euro 4,489 million as at 31 

December 2014 and 2013, respectively. This decrease, amounting to Euro 3,291 million, 

reflects primarily: (i) reimbursement of paid-in capital contributions to PT SGPS (Euro 2,895 

million); (ii) the share capital increase in cash subscribed by Oi (Euro 1,250 million), and (iii) the 

net loss of Euro 2,580 million recorded in 2014 excluding a loss of Euro 1,000 million that did 

not impact the total shareholders’ equity, as corresponds to a transfer from reserves to net 

income of the accumulated value of negative currency translation adjustments in connection 

with the sale of Bratel BV; (iv) positive currency translation adjustments of Euro 151 million that 

reflect basically the impact of the appreciation of the Brazilian Real against the Euro until 5 May 

Balance Sheet Euro
31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013  1 Jan 2013

Restated Restated
Non-current assets 11,240,303,247 9,633,301,596 10,243,380,494 
Current assets 374,381,570 89,734,276 62,915,247 

Total assets 11,614,684,817 9,723,035,872 10,306,295,741 
Non-current liabilities 8,594,058,111 5,065,083,056 3,523,230,334 
Current liabilities 1,823,474,331 169,346,864 1,512,957,465 

Total liabilities 10,417,532,442 5,234,429,920 5,036,187,799 
Share capital 3,450,000,000 2,200,000,000 100,000,000 
Other shareholders' equity instruments 310,940,482 3,206,050,000 5,306,050,000 
Legal reserve 10,000 10,000 10,000 
Adjustments to financial assets (160,096,945) (1,070,788,775) (401,204,726)
Revaluation surplus 175,862,637 286,268,689 231,820,884 
Net income (2,579,563,799) (132,933,962) 33,431,784 

Total shareholders' equity 1,197,152,375 4,488,605,952 5,270,107,942 
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 11,614,684,817 9,723,035,872 10,306,295,741 
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2014 on investments in Brazil; and (v) net actuarial losses (Euro 209 million) recognized mainly 

by Meo Communications under its post retirement benefit obligations, primarily reflecting the 

reduction in discount rates and lower return on assets. 

 

Proposal for application of profits  

Considering that the Company recorded a net loss of Euro 2,579,563,799 for the year ended 31 

December 2014, the Board of Directors proposes that the total amount be transferred to 

retained earnings. 

In addition, since total shareholders’ equity is lower than 50% of the Company’s share capital as 

at 31 December 2014, the Board of Directors will submit to the General Meeting the measures 

to be undertaken by shareholders under the terms and for the purposes of the article 35º of the 

Portuguese Companies Act. 

 

Acknowledges 

The Board acknowledges the commitment of the management and employees of the Company 

and its subsidiaries. 

 

Lisbon, 24 March 2015 
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Euro

Note s 3 1 De c e mbe r 2 0 14 3 1 De c e mbe r 2 0 13 1 Ja n 2 0 13

Re sta te d Re sta te d

ASSETS

Non- c urre nt a sse ts

Tangible fixed assets 957,218 -  -  

Goodwill 6 1,377,899,456 1,377,899,456 1,377,899,456 

Financial investments -  equity method of accounting 7 109,226,116 4,383,422,140 5,302,881,038 

Balances with Group companies 8 9,686,827,460 3,871,980,000 3,562,600,000 

Deferred tax assets 9 65,392,997 -  -  

Tota l non- c urre nt a sse ts 11,2 4 0 ,3 0 3 ,2 4 7  9 ,6 3 3 ,3 0 1,5 9 6  10 ,2 4 3 ,3 8 0 ,4 9 4  

Curre nt a sse ts

State and other public  entities 10 35,762,761 -  -  

Balances with Group companies 8 54,682,138 892,434 -  

Other accounts receivable 11 104,318,464 88,791,722 62,774,281 

Deferrals 12 10,830,027 47,013 136,385 

Financial assets held for trading 4.(f) 86,426,405 -  -  

Cash and bank deposits 82,361,775 3,107 4,581 

Tota l c urre nt a sse ts 3 7 4 ,3 8 1,5 7 0  8 9 ,7 3 4 ,2 7 6  6 2 ,9 15 ,2 4 7  

Tota l a sse ts 11,6 14 ,6 8 4 ,8 17  9 ,7 2 3 ,0 3 5 ,8 7 2  10 ,3 0 6 ,2 9 5 ,7 4 1 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 13 3,450,000,000 2,200,000,000 100,000,000 

Other shareholders' equity instruments 13 310,940,482 3,206,050,000 5,306,050,000 

Legal reserve 13 10,000 10,000 10,000 

Adjustments to financial assets 13 (160,096,945) (1,070,788,775) (401,204,726)

Revaluation surplus 175,862,637 286,268,689 231,820,884 

Net income (2,579,563,799) (132,933,962) 33,431,784 

Tota l sha re holde rs' e quity 1,19 7 ,15 2 ,3 7 5  4 ,4 8 8 ,6 0 5 ,9 5 2  5 ,2 7 0 ,10 7 ,9 4 2  

LIABILITIES

Non- c urre nt lia bilitie s
Provisions 14 203,391,465 -  -  

Loans obtained 15 6,896,864,286 3,544,150,000 1,866,500,000 

Deferrals 12 1,493,802,360 1,520,933,056 1,656,730,334 

Tota l non- c urre nt lia bilitie s 8 ,5 9 4 ,0 5 8 ,111 5 ,0 6 5 ,0 8 3 ,0 5 6  3 ,5 2 3 ,2 3 0 ,3 3 4  

Curre nt lia bilitie s
Provisions 14 909,812 -  -  

Loans obtained 15 1,781,757,143 90,783,928 1,483,544,275 

Balances with Group companies 8 787,326 29,335,997 1,375,425 

Suppliers 4,276,658 126,427 235,912 

Accrued expenses 16 30,871,845 49,100,512 27,801,834 

State and other public  entities 10 4,871,547 -  19 

Tota l c urre nt lia bilitie s 1,8 2 3 ,4 7 4 ,3 3 1 16 9 ,3 4 6 ,8 6 4  1,5 12 ,9 5 7 ,4 6 5  

Tota l lia bilitie s 10 ,4 17 ,5 3 2 ,4 4 2  5 ,2 3 4 ,4 2 9 ,9 2 0  5 ,0 3 6 ,18 7 ,7 9 9  

Tota l lia bilitie s a nd sha re holde rs' e quity 11,6 14 ,6 8 4 ,8 17  9 ,7 2 3 ,0 3 5 ,8 7 2  10 ,3 0 6 ,2 9 5 ,7 4 1 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Accountant The Board of Directors

PT PORTUGAL SGPS, S.A.

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 AND 2013 AND 1 JANUARY 2013
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Euro

Note s 2 014 2 0 13

Re sta te d
Equity losses of affiliated companies 17 (2,503,770,764) (140,913,374)

Supplies and external services 18 (5,193,133) (259,287)

Wages and salaries (2,233,668) (3,209,828)

Indirect taxes 19 (2,928,383) (80,025)

Provisions ((increases)/reductions) 14 (909,812) -  

Other expenses and losses 20 (119,346,498) (728)

OPERATING INCOME (BEFORE FINANCING EXPENSES AND TAXES) (2 ,6 3 4 ,3 8 2 ,2 58 ) (14 4 ,4 6 3 ,2 4 2 )

Interest and related income 21 272,795,340 188,678,968 

Interest and related expenses 21 (289,636,074) (173,158,200)

INCOME BEFORE TAXES (2 ,6 5 1,2 2 2 ,99 2 ) (12 8 ,9 4 2 ,4 7 4 )

Income taxes 9 71,659,193 (3,991,488)

NET LOSS (2 ,5 7 9 ,5 6 3 ,7 99 ) (13 2 ,9 3 3 ,9 6 2 )

Loss per share 22 (51,591) (2,659)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Accountant The Board of Directors

PT PORTUGAL SGPS, S.A.

INCOME STATEMENT

YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 AND 2013 
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Euro

S ha re   
c apita l

Othe r 
sha re holde rs' 

e quity instrume nts
Le ga l  

rese rve
Adjustme nts to

fina nc ia l asse ts
Reta ine d
ea rnings

Ne t
income

Tota l 
sha reholde rs' 

equity

Ba la nc e  as a t 1 Ja nua ry 2 0 13 A 100 ,00 0 ,0 0 0  5 ,3 06 ,05 0 ,0 0 0  10 ,0 0 0  (4 01,2 0 4 ,7 26 ) 23 1,8 20 ,88 4  3 3 ,4 3 1,78 4  5 ,2 7 0 ,10 7 ,9 4 2  

Cha nge s in the  pe riod:

Foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 13.4) -  -  -  (538,855,479) -  -  (53 8 ,8 55 ,47 9 )

Transfer to retained earnings (Note 13.4) -  -  -  (21,016,021) 21,016,021 -  -  

Other changes recognized in shareholders' equity (Note 13.4) -  -  -  (109,712,549) -  -  (109 ,712 ,5 49 )

B -  -  -  (66 9 ,5 8 4 ,0 49 ) 2 1,016 ,0 21 -  (64 8 ,5 68 ,02 8 )

Ne t inc ome C (132,933,962) (13 2 ,9 33 ,96 2 )

Compre hensive  inc ome B+C (7 8 1,50 1,9 90 )

Opera tions with sha re holde rs:

Application of the previous year's earnings -  -  -  -  33,431,784 (33,431,784) -  

Capital achievements (Note 13.1) 2,100,000,000 -  -  -  -  -  -  

Reimbursement of additional paid (Note 13.2) -  (2,100,000,000) -  -  -  -  -  

D -  -  -  -  3 3 ,4 3 1,78 4  (33 ,43 1,7 84 ) -  

Ba la nc e  as a t 31 De ce mber 2 013  (Re sta te d) A+B+C+D 2 ,2 00 ,00 0 ,0 0 0  3 ,2 06 ,05 0 ,0 0 0  10 ,0 0 0  (1,07 0 ,7 8 8 ,7 75 ) 2 8 6 ,2 68 ,68 9  (13 2 ,9 3 3 ,9 62 ) 4 ,4 88 ,60 5 ,9 5 2  

Cha nge s in the  pe riod:

Foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 13.4) -  -  -  1,151,256,572 -  -  1,15 1,25 6 ,5 7 2  

Unpaid dividends -  -  -  8,046,449 (8,046,449) -  -  

Transfer to retained earnings (Note 13.4) -  -  -  (30,574,359) 30,574,359 -  -  

Other changes recognized in shareholders' equity (Note 13.4) -  -  -  (218,036,832) -  -  (2 18 ,03 6 ,8 31)

B -  -  -  9 10 ,6 9 1,83 0  2 2 ,5 2 7 ,9 10  -  9 33 ,2 19 ,74 1 

Ne t inc ome C (2,579,563,799) (2 ,57 9 ,5 6 3 ,79 9 )

Compre hensive  inc ome B+C (1,64 6 ,3 44 ,05 8 )

Opera tions with sha re holde rs:

Application of the previous year's earnings -  -  -  -  (132,933,962) 132,933,962 -  

Capital achievements (Note 13.2) 1,250,000,000 -  -  -  -  -  1,2 50 ,00 0 ,0 0 0  

Reimbursement of additional paid (Note 13.2) -  (2,895,109,518) -  -  -  -  (2 ,8 95 ,10 9 ,5 18 )

D 1,2 50 ,00 0 ,0 0 0  (2 ,8 95 ,10 9 ,5 18 ) -  -  (13 2 ,9 3 3 ,9 62 ) 13 2 ,9 33 ,96 2  (1,6 4 5 ,10 9 ,5 18 )

Ba la nc e  as a t 31 De ce mber 2 014 A+B+C+D 3 ,4 50 ,00 0 ,0 0 0  3 10 ,94 0 ,4 8 2  10 ,0 0 0  (16 0 ,0 9 6 ,9 45 ) 17 5 ,8 62 ,63 7  (2 ,57 9 ,5 6 3 ,79 9 ) 1,19 7 ,15 2 ,3 7 5  

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Accountant The Board of Directors

PT PORTUGAL SGPS, S.A.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 AND 2013 
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Euro

Note s 2 0 14 2 0 13

OPERATING ACTIV ITIES

Payments to suppliers (3,870,356) (254,398)

Payments to employees (564,654) (2,407,477)

Ca sh re c e ipts re la ting to inc ome  ta xes (4 ,4 3 5 ,0 10 ) (2 ,6 6 1,8 7 5 )

Payments from Income taxes 4.(a) (38,312,857) (1,375,425)

Other cash receipts (payments) (1,399,340) (8,554)

Ca sh flows from ope ra ting a c tivitie s (1) (4 4 ,14 7 ,2 0 7 ) (4 ,04 5 ,8 5 4 )

INVESTING ACTIV ITIES

Cash receipts resulting from:

Financial investments 4.(b) 3,122,451,900 -  

Loans granted 8 305,994,540 -  

Interest and related income 259,275,146 161,769,092 

Dividends 4.(c) 30,087,056 3,065,646 

3 ,717 ,8 0 8 ,6 4 2  164 ,8 3 4 ,7 38  

Payments resulting from:

Intangible assets (957,216) -  

Financial investments 4.(d) (277,847,698) (5,350,427)

Loans granted 4.(e) (6,160,714,781) (312,915,000)

Short- term financial applications 4.(f) (200,000,000) -  

(6 ,63 9 ,5 19 ,6 9 5 ) (318 ,26 5 ,4 2 7 )

Ca sh flows from inve sting ac tivitie s (2 ) (2 ,9 2 1,7 11,0 5 3 ) (153 ,43 0 ,6 8 9 )

FINANCING ACTIV ITIES

Cash receipts resulting from:

Loans obtained 4.(g) 41,238,384,627 11,660,339,653 

Share capital realization 13.1 1,250,000,000 2,100,000,000 

4 2 ,4 88 ,3 8 4 ,6 2 7  13 ,76 0 ,3 3 9 ,6 53  

Payments resulting from:

Loans repaid 4.(g) (36,194,697,126) (11,375,450,000)

Interest and related expenses (350,361,046) (127,414,584)

Share reductions and other shareholders' equity instruments 13.2 (2,895,109,518) (2,100,000,000)

(3 9 ,44 0 ,16 7 ,6 9 0 ) (13 ,6 02 ,8 6 4 ,5 8 4 )

Ca sh flows from fina nc ing a c tivities (3 ) 3 ,04 8 ,2 16 ,9 3 7  157 ,4 7 5 ,0 69  

Cha nge  in c a sh a nd ca sh e quiva le nts (4 )=(1)+(2 )+(3 ) 82 ,3 5 8 ,6 7 7  (1,4 7 4 )

Effect of exchange differences (9) -  

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 3,107 4,581 

Ca sh a nd c ash equiva lents a t the  end of the  pe riod 8 2 ,3 6 1,7 7 5  3 ,107  

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Accountant The Board of Directors

PT PORTUGAL SGPS, S.A.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 AND 2013
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PT Portugal, SGPS, S.A. 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

as at 31 December 2014 

(Amounts in Euro) 

 

1. Introduction 

PT Portugal, SGPS, S.A. (“PT Portugal”) is engaged in investments management, as an indirect 

way to exercise economic activities.  

PT Portugal was incorporated by Portugal Telecom, SGPS, S.A. (“Portugal Telecom” or “PT 

SGPS”) on 28 March 2006. On 5 May 2014, as explained in more detail below, Portugal 

Telecom subscribed a share capital increase of Oi, S.A. (“Oi”) through the contribution in kind of 

its 100% interest in the Company and, as a result, PT Portugal is since then a wholly-owned 

subsidiary of Oi, S.A., the leading provider of telecommunication services in the Brazilian market 

and the largest fixed telecommunications operator in South America in terms of active clients. 

On 1 December 2014, Oi has entered into an exclusivity agreement with Altice, S.A. for the 

purpose of reaching an agreement regarding the final terms of the disposal of PT Portugal. On 8 

December 2014, the Board of Directors of Oi concluded the approval of the general terms and 

conditions for the disposal of the total shares of PT Portugal to Altice Portugal, S.A., a wholly-

owned subsidiary of Altice, S.A.. On 22 January 2015, this sale was approved at the General 

Shareholders’ Meeting of PT SGPS, although is still pending the approval by the competition 

authorities. Under the terms agreed between Oi and Altice, the total shares of PT Portugal 

should be transferred for an amount of Euro 7.4 billion (enterprise value), an amount that 

includes a deferred payment of Euro 500 million related to future revenues of PT Portugal and 

that should be deducted from total net debt (debt minus cash), unfunded pension obligations 

and other financial liabilities recorded at the entities to be transferred to Altice upon the 

conclusion of the transaction. This transaction includes only the operations in Portugal and 

Hungry, and does not include the Company’s investments in Africa and Timor, held through the 

subsidiary PT Participações, and the investments in Rio Forte Investments S.A. (“Rio Forte”) 

debt, which are subject to an exchange agreement entered into between Oi and Portugal 

Telecom (Note 4.f). The Brazilian securities commission (“CVM”) approved this exchange 

agreement on 4 March 2014, which is still pending the approval at the Oi’s General 

Shareholders Meeting to be held on 26 March 2015. 
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a) Investments in Portugal 

In 2006, the Company acquired from PT SGPS the investments in PT Comunicações, S.A. (“PT 

Comunicações”), which was renamed in December 2014 to Meo – Serviços de Comunicações e 

Multimédia, S.A. (“Meo Comunicações”), and in TMN – Telecomunicações Móveis Nacionais, 

S.A. (“TMN”), which was renamed in January 2014 to Meo – Serviços de Comunicações e 

Multimédia, S.A. (“Meo, S.A.”) and was incorporated in PT Comunicações on 29 December 

2014, producing effects on 1 January 2014. 

In 2009, Portugal Telecom continued the reorganization of the group by geographic by 

transferring to PT Portugal the Portuguese support companies that render services mainly to PT 

Comunicações and TMN, with the purposes of improving the corporate structure of the group 

and obtaining efficiency gains in the businesses managed by PT Portugal. Under this 

reorganization, PT Portugal acquired in 2009 from PT SGPS the investments in PT Cloud e 

Data Centers, S.A. (“PT Cloud”), PT Inovação e Sistemas, S.A. (“PT Inovação”), PT Pro - 

Serviços Administrativos e de Gestão Partilhados, S.A. (“PT Pro”), PT Sales - Serviços de 

Telecomunicações e Sistemas de Informação, S.A. (“PT Sales”) and PT Contact – 

Telemarketing e Serviços de Informação, S.A. (“PT Contact”), and also the paid-in capital 

contributions granted to these companies. The investments acquired represent 100% interests 

of those companies, except for PT Cloud where the interest acquired corresponds to 99.8% of 

that entity’s share capital. 

During 2010, and considering the need to adjust the corporate structure to reflect the 

consolidation of its fixed-line and mobile businesses, allowing for a more efficient management 

of market trends, PT Portugal disposed to PT Comunicações its 100% interest in TMN.  

In 2011, PT Portugal incorporated PT Data Center, a company that provides services related to  

the operation and maintenance of the group’s data centers and related telecommunications 

infrastructures. 

In 2013, PT Portugal incorporated PT Pay, a company that developed and operates a payments 

system for services using mobile phone. 

 

b) Investments in Brazil 

On 28 March 2011, through Bratel Brasil, PT Portugal concluded the acquisition of a direct and 

indirect interest of 25.3% in Oi for a total cash consideration of R$ 8,256 million (Euro 3,647 

million). Under this transaction, Portugal Telecom entered into a shareholders’ agreement with 

AG Telecom Participações (“AG Tel”) and LF Tel, S.A. (“LF Tel”), two of the main shareholders 

of Telemar Participações, the controlling shareholder of Oi, the terms of which were contained 

mechanisms to produce unanimous voting by these parties in meetings of the board of directors 

of Telemar Participações on strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the activity of 

the Oi Group. Consequently, in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 
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(“IFRS 11”), the Company concluded that it contractually shared the control of Telemar 

Participações and that therefore both Telemar Participações and Oi were classified as joint 

ventures and thus accounted for by the equity method given the provisions of IFRS 11. 

On 2 May 2014, in connection with the business combination between PT SGPS and Oi, PT 

Portugal disposed its investment in Bratel BV to PT SGPS (Note 1.d). 

 

c) Investments in Africa and Asia 

Following the acquisition of the investment in PT Participações (Note 1.d), the holding company 

of the group that holds the investments in Africa and Asia, PT Portugal Group, since 2 May 

2014, renders fixed, mobile and other telecommunications related services essentially in 

Namibia, Mozambique, Cabo Verde and São Tomé, among other countries, primarily through its 

subsidiaries Mobile Telecommunications Limited (“MTC”) (direct interest of 34%), LTM – Listas 

Telefónicas de Moçambique (“LTM”) (direct interest of 50%), Cabo Verde Telecom (“CVT”) 

(direct interest of 40%) and CST – Companhia Santomense de Telecomunicações, SARL 

(“CST”) (direct interest of 51%), respectively. These African entities are directly or indirectly 

owned by Africatel Holdings BV, a subsidiary where PT Portugal has a 75% economic interest. 

PT Portugal also renders mobile telecommunications services since 2 May 2014 in Timor Leste, 

through its subsidiary Timor Telecom, S.A. (economic interest of 44.2%). 

In addition to the investments mentioned above and also following the acquisition of PT 

Participações on 2 May 2014, PT Portugal Group holds through PT Ventures a direct interest of 

25% in Unitel, an entity that renders mobile telecommunication services in Angola. PT Ventures 

is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Africatel Holdings BV, which in turn is only 75% owned by PT 

Portugal, thus resulting in an effective interest of 18.75% held by the Group in Unitel.  

As referred previously, PT Ventures and Africatel Holdings BV are indirectly owned by PT 

Participações, which was acquired by PT Portugal on 2 May 2014, through PT Móveis, SGPS, 

S.A. (“PT Móveis”). As a result, PT Portugal is subject to the risks inherent to the operations and 

investments of PT Participações, including the risks relating to the investment in Unitel 

described below: 

The carrying value of the indirect investment in Unitel in PT Portugal’s financial 

statements represents a majority of the purchase price of PT Participações. Any 

reduction in the value of this investment could have a material adverse effect on the 

Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. 

The fair value of the investment in Unitel (Euro 1,328 million) and the dividends receivable from 

this entity (Euro 390 million), net of the 25% non-controlling interest of Africatel Holdings, 

represents a major portion of the total amount paid for the acquisition of PT Participações and is 

higher than the Company’s shareholders’ equity. Subsequently, the carrying value of the 

Company’s indirect investment in Unitel will be measured at fair value and tested for 
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impairment, when events or changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying value of the 

indirect investment in Unitel might be lower. Regarding the recoverable amount in December 

2014, the Company assessed changes in certain assumptions of the initial valuation, namely 

related to the depreciation of the Kwanza against the Dollar occurred in the beginning of 2015, 

the revision in March 2015 of the credit rating assigned by Moody’s to Angola, from “stable” to 

“negative” outlook, although the overall rating was maintained at Ba2, and the introduction of a 

new contribution over foreign currency operations to outside Angola. Other economic measures 

applicable in Angola and out of the Company’s control might result in the change of the carrying 

value of the investment in Unitel. Any change in the fair value of the indirect investment in Unitel 

could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s businesses, financial position and 

operating results. 

PT Portugal cannot assure that PT Ventures will realize the amounts receivable recorded 

with respect to the declared and unpaid dividends owed to PT Ventures by Unitel or be 

able to obtain dividends that may be declared with respect to 2013 or succeeding fiscal 

years. 

Since November 2012, PT Ventures has not received any payments for outstanding amounts 

owed to it by Unitel with respect to dividends declared by Unitel for fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 

2010. Unitel declared dividends in an aggregate amount of US$190.0 million with respect to its 

2012 fiscal year, US$190.0 million with respect to its 2011 fiscal year and US$157.5 million with 

respect to its 2010 fiscal year. As of the date of these consolidated financial statements, PT 

Ventures has not received US$93.8 million of the dividends declared by Unitel with respect to 

Unitel’s 2010 fiscal year, and has not received any of the dividends declared by Unitel with 

respect to Unitel’s 2011 and 2012 fiscal years. Consequently, as at 31 December 2014, PT 

Ventures has dividends receivable from Unitel totalling US$474 million, equivalent to Euro 390 

million. 

At a general meeting of Unitel held on 4 November  2013, the other shareholders discussed the 

financial statements as well as the payment of dividends with respect to the fiscal year of 2013. 

PT Ventures was unable to attend that meeting because the financial statements and the other 

rele vant information about the meeting were not included in the prior notice for the meeting, 

nor were they made available to PT Ventures, despite the fact that PT Ventures requested 

those materials on several occasions. In addition, PT Ventures has not received the minutes of 

the meeting nor has it been informed about the decisions taken, in spite of PT Ventures’ several 

requests. 

As of the date of this annual report, Unitel has not declared dividends with respect to the fiscal 

year ended 31 December 2014. 

On 25 March 2014, Unitel issued a statement claiming that PT Ventures is not listed on the 

shareholders’ register of Unitel, and that the board of directors of Unitel had notified PT SGPS 

about the existence of an irregularity, which purportedly resulted in Unitel being unable to 
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distribute dividends to PT Ventures until the resolution of this irregularity. In June 2014, PT 

Ventures (formerly known as Portugal Telecom Internacional, SGPS, S.A.) resolved the alleged 

irregularity with the Angolan Foreign Investment Institute. On 3 June 2014, PT Ventures was 

issued a Foreign Investment Certificate endorsing its current name. 

PT Ventures has demanded an explanation from Unitel on several occasions regarding its 

failure to pay to PT Ventures its portion of declared dividends. As of the date of this annual 

report, PT Ventures has not received a satisfactory explanation regarding this failure to pay, nor 

has PT Ventures received reliable indications as to the expected timing of the payment of the 

accrued dividends.  

The Company has no assurance about the timing of the payment of these dividends. The 

Company’s inability to receive these dividends could have a material adverse impact on PT 

Portugal’s financial position and results of operations. 

The other shareholders of Unitel have indicated to PT Ventures that they believe that 

Portugal Telecom’s sale of a minority interest in Africatel did not comply with the Unitel 

shareholders’ agreement. 

The Unitel shareholders’ agreement provides a right of first refusal to the other shareholders if 

any shareholder desires to transfer any or all of its shares of Unitel, other than transfers to 

certain affiliated companies. The agreement also provides that if any shareholder is proven to 

be in breach of a material obligation under the Unitel shareholders’ agreement, the other 

shareholders will have a right to purchase that shareholder’s stake in Unitel at its net asset 

value.  

The other shareholders of Unitel have asserted to PT Ventures that they believe that Portugal 

Telecom’s sale of a minority interest in Africatel during 2007 was in breach of the Unitel 

shareholders’ agreement. PT Ventures disputes this interpretation of the relevant provisions of 

the Unitel shareholders’ agreement, and PT Portugal, based on external legal advice, believes 

that the relevant provisions of the Unitel shareholders’ agreement apply only to a transfer of 

Unitel shares by PT Ventures itself. 

As of the date of this annual report, and to the best knowledge of the Company, no lawsuits 

have been initiated in relation to the sale of a minority interest in Africatel by Portugal Telecom. 

If the other shareholders of Unitel were to assert this right in an appropriate forum and a binding 

decision to this effect were to be rendered in favour of those shareholders, PT Portugal could be 

required to sell the interest in Unitel at a price significantly less than the amount recorded in 

these consolidated financial statements with respect to the indirect investment in Unitel. The 

sale of PT Ventures’ interest in Unitel in these circumstances could have a material adverse 

impact in PT Portugal’s financial condition and results of operations. 
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Other shareholders of Unitel aledge that, as a result of the inability of Portugal Telecom 

to offer its indirect interest in Unitel to those shareholders before the transfer of PT 

Portugal to Oi, those shareholders would have the right to acquire PT Portugal’s 

investment in Unitel for the carrying value of its net assets. 

On 25 March 2014, Unitel issued a public statement in which Unitel implied that its shareholders 

had a right of first refusal related to PT SGPS’ then-pending sale of its indirect interest in Unitel 

to our company. Subsequently, the other shareholders of Unitel delivered a notice to PT SGPS 

in which they claimed that our indirect acquisition of PT Ventures’ interest in Unitel as part of the 

Oi capital increase would trigger this right. The Company believes that the relevant provisions of 

the Unitel shareholders’ agreement would apply only to a transfer of Unitel shares by PT 

Ventures itself.  

As of the date of this annual report, we have not been notified of any proceedings initiated with 

respect to PT SGPS’s failure to offer its indirect interest in Unitel to the other shareholders of 

Unitel prior to our acquisition of PT Portugal. If the other shareholders of Unitel were to claim 

that PT SGPS’ failure to offer its indirect interest in Unitel to those shareholders resulted in a 

breach of the Unitel shareholders’ agreement, and if a binding decision by an appropriate forum 

to this effect were to be rendered in favor of those shareholders, PT Ventures could be required 

to sell for its interest in Unitel for its net asset value, which is significantly lower than the amount 

that we record in our financial statements with respect to our indirect investment in Unitel. The 

sale of PT Ventures’ interest in Unitel under these circumstances would have a material 

adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations. 

The other shareholders of Unitel have prevented PT Ventures from exercising its 

governance rights to nominate the managing director and a majority of the board of 

directors of Unitel. 

Under the Unitel shareholders’ agreement, PT Ventures is entitled to nominate three of the five 

members of Unitel’s board of directors, including the managing director of Unitel. Under the 

Unitel shareholders’ agreement, the appointment of the managing director of Unitel is subject to 

the approval of the holders of 75% of Unitel’s shares. However, the other shareholders of Unitel 

have failed to vote to elect the directors nominated by PT Ventures at Unitel’s shareholders 

meetings, and as a result, PT Ventures’ representation on Unitel’s board of directors has been 

reduced to a single director since June 2006, and the managing director of Unitel has not been 

a nominee of PT Ventures since June 2006. 

On 22 July 2014, the only member of Unitel’s board of directors that had been appointed by PT 

Ventures resigned from his position, and the other shareholders of Unitel have not permitted PT 

Ventures to appoint a replacement. In November 2014, the other shareholders of Unitel notified 

PT Ventures that its rights as a shareholder of Unitel had been purportedly suspended in 

October 2012, although these other shareholders have not indicated any legal basis for this 

alleged suspension. At a general shareholders meeting on Unitel held on 15 December 2014, 
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an election of members of the board of directors of Unitel was held. At this meeting, Unitel’s 

other shareholders claimed that PT Ventures was not entitled to vote as a result of the alleged 

suspension of its rights as a shareholder of Unitel in October 2012, and they refused to elect the 

member nominated by PT Ventures to Unitel’s board of directors.  

PT Ventures has filed a suit in Angolan court to annul the results of the election of members of 

the Unitel board of directors on 15 December 2014. As of the date of this annual report, no 

nominee of PT Ventures serves on the Unitel board of directors. 

Unitel has granted loans to a related party and entered into a management contract with 

a third-party without the approval of PT Ventures. 

Under the Unitel shareholders’ agreement, Unitel is not permitted to enter into any contracts 

with its shareholders or any of their affiliates unless approved by a resolution of its board of 

directors adopted by at least four members of its board of directors. As a result of the inability of 

PT Ventures to appoint its additional two members of the Unitel board of directors, PT Ventures 

is unable to exercise its implied veto right over related party transactions of Unitel. 

Between May and October 2012, Unitel made disbursements to Unitel International Holdings 

B.V. of Euro 178.9 million and US$35.0 million under a “Facility Agreement” entered into 

between Unitel and Unitel International Holdings B.V., an entity that competes with Portugal 

Telecom in Cabo Verde and in São Tomé and Principe, or Unitel Holdings. Unitel Holdings is 

controlled by Mrs. Isabel dos Santos, an indirect shareholder of Unitel, and according to 

information made public by NOS, one of the indirect controlling shareholders of ZOPT, SGPS, 

S.A. (which holds a majority of the voting and total share capital of NOS), one of the principal 

competitors of Portugal Telecom in Portugal. PT Ventures’ representative on the Unitel board of 

directors voted against these transactions at the time of their proposed execution by Unitel, and 

PT Ventures abstained when the consolidated financial statements of Unitel that included these 

transactions were approved by the other Unitel shareholders at a shareholders meeting.  

Unitel has made additional loans to related parties during 2013. The Company has been unable 

to obtain information with respect to the existence of similar transactions during 2014. 

Any failure by Unitel International Holdings B.V. to make timely payment under this Facility 

Agreement could have a material adverse effect on the financial condition and results of 

operations of Unitel and the value of the Compny’s indirect investment in Unitel. 

In addition, Unitel has recorded a management fee of US$155.7 million payable to a third-party 

in its unaudited stand-alone financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 

prepared under Angolan GAAP. This management fee was not presented to the board of 

directors or shareholders’ meeting of Unitel for approval and was not approved by PT Ventures. 

The payment of this management fee by Unitel could have a material adverse effect on the 

financial condition and results of operations of Unitel and therefore the value of our indirect 

investment in Unitel. 
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The Company cannot assure that will be able to successfully appoint additional members to the 

Unitel board of directors and therefore prevent Unitel from taking actions that would require the 

approval of the members of the Unitel board of directors nominated by PT Ventures, including 

approving related party transactions with the other shareholders that we believe are detrimental 

to the financial condition and results of operations of Unitel. The use of the resources of Unitel 

in this manner could have a material adverse impact on Unitel, as well as the value of the 

Company’s investment in Unitel and its financial position and results of operations of Unitel and 

therefore the value of our investment in Unitel. 

The other shareholders of Unitel have attempted to dilute our indirect ownership of Unitel 

through a capital increase in which we could be technically unable to participate, and 

have called meetings at which they have indicated the desire to unilaterally amend the 

bylaws of Unitel and the Unitel shareholders’ agreement. 

At a general shareholders meeting of Unitel held on December 15, 2014, the other shareholders 

of Unitel voted to increase Unitel’s share capital and alter the nominal value of its shares. 

Although PT Ventures requested the proposal and other relevant information in respect with this 

and other items in the agenda of the meeting on several occacions, PT Ventures has never 

been provided with such documents and information. The details of this capital increase are 

obscure as they were not included in the prior notice for this meeting nor were they discussed in 

detail during this meeting. Additional details of this capital increase have been included in draft 

minutes of this meeting provided to PT Ventures and it appears that, although PT Ventures has 

determined to subscribe to its pro rata share of this capital increase to avoid dilution of its 

interest in Unitel, payment of the subscription price will be due on an accelerated timetable that 

would not permit PT Ventures to obtain the necessary foreign exchange approvals prior to the 

date on which payment would be due. PT Ventures has filed a suit in Angolan court to annul the 

approval of the Unitel capital increase at this shareholders meeting. 

The agenda of this general shareholders meeting of Unitel included amendments to Unitel’s by-

laws and the purported amendments to Unitel shareholders’ agreement, in addition to other 

matters that may have been raised at the shareholders’ meeting itself, which inluded 

investments by Unitel in Zimbabwe and a study in order to implement a corporate 

reorganization of Unitel. PT Ventures has not been provided of the details of the proposed 

bylaw amendments nor of any purported amendments to the Unitel shareholders’ agreement, 

despite its several requests before, during and after the meeting held on 15 December 2014. 

The meeting was suspended without any action taken on these items and is expected to be 

reconvened on 9 April 2015. PT Ventures has filed a suit in Angolan court to annul the approval 

of investments by Unitel in Zimbabwe and a study in order to implement a corporate 

reorganization of Unitel. 

The Company cannot assess the impact to Unitel or to the Company of the matters considered 

at the 15 December 2014 general shareholders meeting of Unitel or the proposed amendments 

to Unitel’s by-laws and purported amendmnets to the Unitel shareholders’ agreement as we 
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have not been provided with sufficient details to appropriately analyze these matters. In 

addition, we note that there appears to be no legal authority for the other shareholders of Unitel 

to amend the Unitel shareholders’ agreement through actions taken at a meeting of 

shareholders, as this agreement is an agreement among the parties thereto. Should the other 

shareholders approve actions detrimental to Unitel or our investment in Unitel, these actions 

could have a material adverse impact on the financial position and results of operations of Unitel 

and therefore the value of the Company’s investment in Unitel. 

Unitel’s concession to operate in Angola has expired and has not yet been renewed. 

Unitel’s concession to provide mobile telecommunications services in Angola expired in April 

2012. The Company has no assurances regarding the terms under which the Angolan National 

Institute of Telecommunications (Instituto Angolano das Comunicações), or INACOM, would 

grant a renewal of this concession, if at all. A failure of Unitel to obtain a renewal of this 

concession could have a material adverse effect on the ability of Unitel to continue to provide 

mobile telecommunications services in Angola, which could have a material adverse effect on 

PT Portugal’s financial position and results of operations the value of our investment in Unitel. 

Joint ventures and partnerships that may not be successful and may expose our 

company to future costs. 

The Company is partner to several joint ventures and partnerships in Africa and Asia. The 

Company’s partnering arrangements may fail to perform as expected for various reasons, 

including an incorrect assessment of our needs or the capabilities or financial stability of our 

strategic partners. The Company’s share of any losses from or commitments to contribute 

additional capital to such partnerships may also adversely affect our results of operations or 

financial position. 

The Company’s ability to work with these partners or develop new products and solutions may 

become constrained, which could harm our competitive position in the markets served by these 

joint ventures and partnerships. The Company may have disputes with its partners in these joint 

ventures, and may have difficulty agreeing with its partners on actions that it believes would be 

beneficial to those joint ventures and partnerships. In addition, the joint ventures and 

partnerships in African and Asian countries are typically governed by the laws of those 

countries, and the Company’s partners are often established participants in those markets and 

may have greater influence in those economies than we will. To the extent we experience 

difficulties with our joint venture partners, the Company may encounter difficulties in protecting 

its investments in those countries. 

Any of these factors could cause these joint ventures and partnerships not to be profitable and 

could cause the Company to lose all or part of the value of its investments in those ventures. 
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The minority shareholder of Africatel has asserted that our acquisition of PT Portugal 

triggered its right to require us to purchase its shares of Africatel under the Africatel 

shareholders’ agreement. 

The Company indirectly owns 75% of the share capital of Africatel. Samba Luxco S.à.r.l., an 

affiliate of Helios Investors LLP, or Samba Luxco, owns the remaining 25%. PT SGPS, Africatel 

GmbH & Co. KG, or Africatel GmbH, and PT Ventures, and Samba Luxco are parties to a 

shareholders’ agreement. 

On 16 September 2014, our subsidiary, Africatel GmbH, which directly holds our interest in 

Africatel, received a letter from Samba Luxco in which Samba Luxco claimed that Oi’s 

acquisition of PT Portugal was deemed a change of control of PT SGPS under the Africatel 

shareholders agreement, and that this change of control entitled Samba Luxco to exercise a put 

right under the Africatel shareholders’ agreement at the fair market equity value of Samba 

Luxco’s Africatel shares. In the letter, Samba Luxco purported to exercise the alleged put right 

and thereby require Africatel GmbH to acquire its shares in Africatel. 

On 26 September 2014, Africatel GmbH responded to Samba Luxco stating that there had not 

been any action or event that would trigger the right to exercise the put option under the 

Africatel’s shareholders’ agreement and that Africatel GmbH intended to challenge Samba 

Luxco’s purported exercise of the put option. On the same date, we issued a Material Fact 

disclosing Samba Luxco’s purported exercise of the put option, our understanding that the 

exercise of the put option is not applicable, and that our board of directors had authorized our 

management to take the necessary actions to sell our interest in Africatel.  

On 12 November 2014, the International Court of Arbitration of the International Chamber of 

Commerce notified Africatel GmbH that Samba Luxco had commenced arbitral proceedings 

against Africatel GmbH to enforce its purported put right or, in the alternative, certain ancillary 

rights and claims. Africatel GmbH presented its answer to Samba Luxco’s request for arbitration 

on 15 December 2014. The arbitral tribunal was constituted on 12 March 2015. The Company 

intends to vigorously defend Africatel GmbH in these proceedings.  

 

d) Business Combination between Portugal Telecom and Oi 

On 1 October 2013, Portugal Telecom, Oi S.A., AG Tel, LF Tel, Bratel Brasil S.A., Pasa 

Participações S.A. (“Pasa”), EDSP 75 Participações S.A. (“EDSP75”) (which together with 

Telemar Participações S.A. ("Tpart") are defined as “Oi Holding Companies”), Banco Espírito 

Santo (“BES”) and Nivalis Holding B.V. (“Ongoing”) signed a memorandum of understanding 

setting out the basis for a proposed merger of Portugal Telecom, Oi and the Oi Holding 

Companies (the “Business Combination”).  

One of the steps necessary to implement the Business Combination consisted of a share capital 

increase undertaken by Oi, S.A. on 5 May 2014, totaling R$ 13,960 million, composed of (1) 
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R$5,710 million (Euro 1,750 million) in assets contributed by Portugal Telecom, corresponding 

to the valuation carried out by Banco Santander (Brasil), S.A. of PT Portugal as of the date of 

the share capital increase, and (2) R$ 8,250 million in cash proceeds obtained from investors 

other than Portugal Telecom. With the purpose of concentrating under PT Portugal all operating 

assets and related liabilities of Portugal Telecom Group, except for the investment in Oi, 

Portugal Telecom and PT Portugal and its subsidiaries realized the following main corporate 

transactions prior to the Oi share capital increase: 

 On 31 March 2014, PT Portugal acquired for total amounts of Euro 1.5 million (Note 4) 

and Euro 4.7 million (Note 4) the 100% interests in PT Centro Corporativo and Portugal 

Telecom Investimentos, respectively, both of which provide consultant services to group 

companies and were previously held by Portugal Telecom. 

 On 2 May 2014, PT Móveis, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of PT Portugal,  

disposed to PT SGPS for a total amount of Euro 4,195 million (Note 45) its 100% 

interest in Bratel BV, a holding entity that basically held the investment in Oi indirectly 

through another holding company (Bratel Brasil), as the investment in Oi was not part of 

the net assets transferred to Oi in the share capital increase. As a result of this 

transaction, PT Móveis recognized a total loss of Euro 950 million (Note 17), including 

(1) a capital gain of Euro 50 million reflecting the difference between the sale price and 

the carrying value of the investment in Bratel BV, and (2) a loss of Euro 1,000 million 

corresponding to the cumulative amount of negative currency translation adjustements 

generated since the acquisition of the investment in Oi that were transferred to net 

income upon the sale of this business. Prior to this sale, on 30 April 2014, PT Móveis 

had subscribed a share capital increase of Bratel BV in an amount of approximately 

Euro 1,302.5 million. 

 On 2 May 2014, PT Móveis acquired for a total amount of Euro 2,240 million the 100% 

interest in PT Participações previously held by Portugal Telecom. PT Participações 

holds directly or indirectly the investments in África and Ásia, the most relevant of which 

are listed above (Note 1.c). 

 On 5 May 2014, PT Portugal acquired for a total amount of Euro 255 million (Note 4) 

the 100% interest in PT Finance previously held by Portugal Telecom. PT Finance is 

responsible for obtaining financing in international financial markets for the group’s 

businesses.  

 On 5 May 2014, Portugal Telecom transferred to PT Portugal the majority of its 

outstanding assets and liabilities for their respective nominal amounts, including the 

investments in Rio Forte, intercompany loans granted and other financings that were 

included in the valuation of PT Portugal for purposes of the Oi share capital increase. 

Cash receipts and payments associated with the transfers of these assets and liabilities 

are detailed in Notes 4 and 15. 
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2. Basis of presentation 

These financial statements were prepared based on Decree-law nº. 158/2009, dated 13 July, 

and in accordance with the Conceptual Structure, Accounting and Financial Reporting 

Standards (“NCRF”) and Interpretative Standards, as approved by Notices nº 15652/2009, 

15653/2009 and 15655/2009 of the General-Secretary of the Ministry of Finance, dated 27 

August, which make up the New Portuguese accounting system, named “Sistema de 

Normalização Contabilística” (“SNC”). 

The Company adopted NCRF for the first time in 2010 and applied for this purpose the “NCRF 3 

Adoption For The First Time of NCRF” (“NCRF 3”), with the transition date being 1 January 

2009 for the purposes of the presentation of these financial statements. As permitted by 

Decree-Law nº. 158/2009, the Company also applies the International Financial Reporting 

Standards (“IAS/IFRS”) and related interpretations (“SIC/IFRIC”) issued by the International 

Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), in order to fill in the gaps or omissions in SNC regarding 

specific situations of certain transactions. 

In 2014, PT Portugal presented for the first time financial statements on a consolidated basis, 

which were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") 

as issued by the European Union. 

The main difference between SNC and IFRS, applicable to these financial statements, relates to 

the recognition of investment subsidies, non-refundable, related to tangible fixed assets. 

According to SNC, these subsidies must be initially recognized in equity and subsequently 

recognized in the income. Under IFRS, PT Portugal recorded these subsidies as a reduction to 

the carrying value of the tangible fixed assets for which the subsidies were granted and, 

subsequently, those subsidies are recognized in earnings on the same proportion that the 

related assets are depreciated. The impact of this difference on shareholders’ equity as at 31 

December 2014 and 2013 amounts to Euro 7 million and Euro 10 million, respectively. 

In connection with the business combination between Portugal Telecom and Oi, all operating 

activities of PT SGPS were concentrated under PT Portugal. On 5 May 2014, PT SGPS 

subscribed a share capital increase of Oi through the contribution in kind of its 100% interest in 

PT Portugal. As a result of the corporate transactions undertaken for the purpose mentioned 

above, the 2014 standalone financial statements are not entirely comparable with those of the 

previous year.  

These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 were approved by the Board 

of Directors and authorised for issue on 24 March 2015 and are still subject to approval at the 

General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with applicable law in Portugal. 
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3. Main accounting policies, judgments and estimates 

These standalone financial statements were prepared on a going concern basis of accounting. 

The main accounting policies used in the preparation of these standalone financial statements 

are described below and were applied consistently. 

 

3.1. Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets are stated at acquisition cost, which includes the amount paid to acquire 

the asset and any expenses directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and 

condition necessary for their operation.  

 

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis from the month they are available 

for use. The depreciation rates reflect the useful life of each class of assets, as follows: 

 

The gains and losses resulting from any write-off or disposal are determined by the difference 

between the amount received and the carrying value of the asset, and are recognized in the 

income statement when the write-off or disposal occurs. 

 

3.2. Business combinations and goodwill 

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for based on the purchase method. On the 

acquisition date, the purchase price includes the following components: (a) the fair value of 

assets acquired; (b) the fair value of liabilities incurred; (c) the fair value of equity instruments 

issued by the Company in exchange for the control of the subsidiary; and (d) expenses directly 

attributable to the acquisition. When applicable, the purchase price includes the effect of 

contingent payments agreed upon under the terms of the transaction, with subsequent changes 

in those payments being recorded as an adjustment to goodwill. 

Any excess of the acquisition cost over the fair value of net assets acquired and contingent 

liabilities of the acquired company, at the date of acquisition, is recorded as goodwill, in 

accordance with “NCRF 14 Business Combinations” (“NCRF 14”). If the acquisition cost is lower 

than the fair value of identifiable net assets, the difference is recorded as a gain in net income.  

Goodwill related to the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in the balance sheet under the 

caption “Goodwill”. 

Asset class Years of useful life

Transportation equipment 4

Administrative equipment 3 - 8

Other tangible fixed assets 4 - 8
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Goodwill is not amortized, but tested for impairment losses on an annual basis or whenever 

there is evidence of a potential loss of value. For impairment test purposes, goodwill is allocated 

to cash generating units. Any impairment loss is recognised in the income statement of the 

period, and cannot be reversed in a subsequent period. 

 

3.3. Financial investments 

Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Company has the power to govern the financial 

and operating policies of the entity, generally represented by the majority of the voting rights.  

Financial investments in subsidiaries and associated companies are recorded under the equity 

method of accounting. Under this method, financial investments are initially recorded at 

acquisition cost and subsequently adjusted for the changes, after the acquisition date, in the 

Company’s share in the net assets of those entities. PT Portugal’s earnings include its share in 

the earnings of those entities. 

Financial investments are evaluated whenever there is evidence they may be impaired and the 

related impairment losses are recorded in the income statement. 

Gains obtained in transactions with subsidiaries and associated companies are eliminated 

proportionally to the Company’s share in those entities, against a reduction in the financial 

investment. 

Capital gains resulting from the disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies within the 

Group are deferred or reversed until the date these investments are disposed of to a third party. 

Whenever these gains are deferred, their recognition in earnings is made under the caption 

“Equity in earnings/(losses) of affiliated companies”, on the proportion that goodwill or assets 

and liabilities identified in the allocation of the purchase price recorded by the acquirer is 

recognized in earnings. 

Capital contributions and loans granted to subsidiaries and associated companies are recorded 

at nominal value, reduced by adjustments for estimated losses, if applicable. 

Financial investments in foreign entities are translated to Euros using the exchange rates 

prevailing at the balance sheet date, while the Company’s share in the earnings of those entities 

is computed based on the average exchange rates for the reported period. The effect of 

translation differences is recognised in shareholders’ equity under the caption “Adjustments to 

financial assets”, and is transferred to net income upon the disposal of a foreign entity or the 

transmission of the investment through another way.  

 

3.4. Accruals  

The Company records its revenue and expenses as they are generated or incurred, regardless 

of when they are received or paid, respectively. 
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3.5. Income taxes 

Income tax expense corresponds to the sum of current and deferred taxes. Deferred taxes are 

recognized in earnings except when they relate to items recorded directly in shareholders’ 

equity, in which case they are also recorded in shareholders’ equity. 

The current income tax is computed based on the estimated taxable income for corporate 

income tax purposes.  

The income tax expense recorded in the financial statements was determined in accordance 

with “NCRF 25 Income Taxes”. In determining income tax expense for the year, besides the 

current tax based on profit before-tax adjusted in accordance with the tax legislation, it is also 

considered the effects of temporary differences between income before tax and taxable income 

originated in the year or in preceding years. 

PT Portugal adopted the Special Taxation Regime for Groups of Companies (“RETGS”), in 

connection with which income taxes is computed based on taxable profits of all companies in 

which it holds since the beginning of the year, directly or indirectly, at least 75% of the share 

capital and that, simultaneously, are located in Portugal and are subject to corporate income 

tax. In connection with the corporate transactions occurred in 2014 (Note 1), PT Portugal 

requested to the tax authorities, under the legal terms, the maintenance in 2014 of the RETGS 

of PT SGPS and the replacement of this entity by PT Portugal as the parent company of the tax 

consolidation group. PT Portugal has not yet received an answer to this request. For purposes 

of these financial statements, income tax was computed based on the assumption that the tax 

authorities will authorize the tax consolidation regime as from 1 January 2014, including in the 

tax consolidation perimeter all entities in which the Company holds at least a 75% interest since 

the beginning of the year, as a result of which the entities acquired in 2014 from PT SGPS, 

directly or indirectly, were excluded from that tax consolidation perimeter. In 2013, PT Portugal 

and its subsidiaries were included in the RETGS of PT SGPS and thus paid income taxes 

directly to this entity. Any gain generated by the RETGS applied by PT SGPS, resulting from the 

tax losses recorded by the entities included in the tax consolidation group, was recorded directly 

in the earnings of the holding company PT SGPS and not in the entity that had generated the 

tax loss. Notwithstanding, eventual benefits or tax credits were maintained in the entities where 

those were originated. 

Deferred tax assets are recorded only when there is a reasonable expectation of sufficient 

future tax profits which allow for their use, or when there are deferred tax liabilities that are 

expected to be reversed in the same periods when the deferred tax assets are also expected to 

be reversed. As at the balance sheet date the Company conducts a reassessment of the 

temporary differences originating deferred tax assets, in order to record deferred tax assets not 

recognized previously and/or to reduce the amount of deferred tax assets that are recognized, 

based on the current estimate of its recoverable amount. 
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3.6. Provisions and contingent liabilities 

The Company recognizes provisions when there is a present obligation as a result of a past 

event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 

to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Where any of the above mentioned criteria is not accomplished, the Company discloses the 

event as a contingent liability, unless the cash outflow is remote. 

Provisions are recognized for an amount corresponding to the present value of the best 

estimate, at the reporting date, of the resources needed to settle the obligation. That estimate is 

determined considering the risks and uncertainties associated with the obligation. Provisions are 

reviewed at the end of each year and adjusted for in order to reflect the best estimate as of that 

date. 

 

3.7. Loans obtained 

Loans obtained are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and 

subsequently presented at amortized cost, based on the effective interest method. 

 

3.8. Balance sheet classification 

Realizable assets and liabilities due over a period greater than one year from the balance sheet 

date are classified under non-current assets and non-current liabilities, respectively, at present 

value. 

 

3.9. Financial assets and liabilities 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company becomes 

part of the corresponding contractual terms, and are classified at cost or amortized cost. 

 

(a) Financial assets and liabilities at cost or amortized cost 

Assets and liabilities are classified at cost or amortized cost if they: (a) have a defined maturity; 

(b) have a fixed or determined income; and (c) don’t represent or include a derivative financial 

instrument. 

Assets and liabilities classified in this category are measured at amortized cost reduced by 

accumulated impairment losses (for financial assets) and correspond primarily to the following 

asset and liability captions included in the Company’s balance sheet: 

- Loans obtained 
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- Balances with Group companies 

- Suppliers 

- Accrued expenses 

- Other accounts receivable  

- State and other public entities 

- Cash and bank deposits 

Amortized cost is determined through the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is 

the one that discounts the estimated future payments and receipts, during the term of the 

financial instrument, to the carrying value of the financial asset or liability. 

 

(b) Impairments on financial assets 

Financial assets included under the caption “cost or amortized cost” are subject to impairment 

tests by the end of each year. Such assets are impaired when there is clear evidence that, as a 

result of one or more events occurred after its initial recognition, their future estimated cash 

flows will be affected.  

For assets measured at amortized cost, the impairment loss corresponds to the difference 

between the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the revised future estimated 

cash flows discounted using the initial effective interest rate. For financial assets measured at 

cost, the impairment loss corresponds to the difference between the carrying amount of the 

asset and the best estimate of the asset’s fair value. 

Subsequently, if there is a reduction in the impairment loss as a result of an event occurred after 

the initial recognition of the loss, the impairment should be reversed through earnings. The 

reversal is recognized up to the limit of the amount that would be recorded (at amortized cost) if 

the loss had not been initially recognized. 

 

(c) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities 

The Company derecognizes financial assets when its contractual rights to obtain the asset’s 

cash flows expire, or when it transfers to another entity all the significant risks and rewards 

associated with the ownership of those assets. The Company derecognizes financial liabilities 

only when the corresponding obligation is settled, cancelled or expires. 

 

3.10. Main accounting estimates and judgements 

To prepare the standalone financial statements under NCRF, the Company’s management uses 

estimates and assumptions that have an effect in the application of accounting policies and in 

the amounts reported. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on 

historical experience and other factors including expectations of future events that are believed 

to be reasonable under the circumstances on which the estimate was based, or as a result of 
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new information or more experience. The main accounting estimate reflected in the financial 

statements relate to the impairment tests of goodwill. 

In 2014, goodwill related to the Portuguese telecommunications business was tested based on 

the agreement entered into between Oi and Altice for the disposal of the Portuguese 

businesses (Note 1). For this purpose, the recoverable amount was computed based on the 

enterprise value attributed by Altice to the Portuguese businesses (Euro 7.4 billion), which was 

deducted from (1) the deferred payment that depends on future revenues (Euro 500 million) and 

(2) the net debt (gross debt minus cash and cash equivalents), unfunded pension obligations 

and other financial liabilities recorded as at 31 December 2014 in the entities to be transferred 

to Altice. These adjustments were determined based on the best available information as of the 

date of the financial statements and will necessarily be updated on the date that the sale is 

effectively completed.  

 

3.11. Events occurred after the balance sheet date 

Events occurred after the balance sheet date that provide additional information about 

conditions existing at the balance sheet date are reflected in the financial statements. Events 

occurred after the balance sheet date that provide information about conditions that occur after 

the balance sheet date are not reflected in the financial statements, but are disclosed in the 

notes to the financial statements, if material. 

 

4. Cash flows 

The caption “Cash and cash equivalents” of the statement of cash flows includes cash on hand 

and bank deposits readily convertible to a known amount of cash. 

The Company is exposed to a liquidity risk if its sources of funding, including cash balances, 

operating cash inflows, divestments, credit lines and cash flows obtained from financing 

operations, do not match its financing needs, such as operating and financing outflows, 

investments, shareholder remuneration and debt repayments. Based on the cash flows 

generated by investing activities, mainly from dividends and interest received from affiliated 

companies, and on the available cash and cash equivalents plus undrawn committed standby 

facilities and underwritten commercial paper agreements, as detailed below, the Company 

believes that it will be able to meet its obligations. 

The cash flow statement was prepared in accordance with “NCRF 2 Statement of Cash Flows”, 

with the following aspects being worth mentioning. 
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(a) Cash payments relating to income taxes 

As explained in Note 3.5, as from 5 May 2014, PT Portugal became the parent company of the 

tax consolidation group. Consequently, since then, all cash payments and receipts with the 

Portuguese State associated with that tax consolidation have been carried out by the Company 

and classified under this caption. For the year ended 31 December 2014, this caption includes 

(1) payments on account in connection with that tax consolidation regime, amounting to Euro 

17.2 million (Note 10), and (2) a payment of Euro 15.5 million (Note 10) related to the 

acquisition from PT SGPS of receivables from the Portuguese State regarding the state 

surcharge incorrectly charged in previous years under the tax consolidation regime. 

 

(b) Cash receipts resulting from financial investments 

In the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, this caption has the following composition 

(Note 7): 

 

 

(c) Dividends received 

In the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, this caption has the following composition 

(Note 7): 

 

  

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Reimbursement of additional paid in capital contributions:

Meo Comunicações 3,114,000,000 -  

3 ,114 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0  
Share capital reductions:

PT Pro 5,302,000 -  

PT Inovação e Sistemas 2,300,000 -  

PT Contact 550,500 -  

PT Cloud e Data Centers 299,400 -  

8 ,4 5 1,9 0 0  

3 ,12 2 ,4 5 1,9 0 0  -  

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

PT Pro 23,000,000 -  

PT Contact 5,000,000 -  

PT Inovação e Sistemas 2,000,000 2,964,643 

PT Sales 87,056 101,003 

3 0 ,0 8 7 ,0 5 6  3 ,0 6 5 ,6 4 6  
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(d) Payments resulting from financial investments 

In the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, this caption has the following composition 

(Note 7): 

 
(a) In 2014, as explained in Note 1.b), PT Portugal acquired several financial investments from Portugal Telecom with the purpose of 

transferring to PT Portugal all businesses that were part of PT Assets to be contributed in the Oi share capital increase of 5 May 

2014. 

 

(e) Cash payments resulting from loans granted 

In the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, this caption has the following composition 

(Note 8): 

 

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Acquisition of financial investments (a):

PT Finance 255,000,000 -  

PT Investimentos 4,702,322 -  

PT Brasil 2,662,714 -  

PTCC 1,482,662 -  

Constitution of PT Pay -  3,500,000 

2 6 3 ,8 4 7 ,6 9 8  3 ,5 0 0 ,0 0 0  

Advance for the acquisition of financial investments -  1,8 5 0 ,4 2 7  

Paid- in capital contributions granted:

PT Data Center 14,000,000 -  

14 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0  -  

2 7 7 ,8 4 7 ,6 9 8  5 ,3 5 0 ,4 2 7  

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Intercompany loans within centralised cash management: (i)

Meo Comunicações 10,718,032 -  

PT Sales 10,554,468 -  

PT CC 3,716,366 -  

PT Inovação e Sistemas 2,469,178 -  

PT Pro 2,307,414 -  

PT Contact 1,689,987 -  

PT Cloud e Data Centers 387,106 -  

Directel 97,680 -  

PT Investimentos 52,804 -  

PT Imobiliária 34,615 -  

PT Partic ipações 29,832 -  

PT Ventures 23,680 -  

PT Móveis 23,128 -  

PT Prestações (106,509) -  

3 1,9 9 7 ,7 8 1 -  

Loans granted:

Meo Comunicações 2,558,350,000 252,000,000 

PT Cloud e Data Centers 68,430,000 -  

PT Inovação e Sistemas 41,160,000 -  

PT CC 30,500,000 -  

PT Data Center 20,302,000 60,315,000 

PT Investimentos 5,000,000 -  

PT Contact 3,600,000 600,000 

PT Imobiliária -  

2 ,7 2 7 ,3 4 2 ,0 0 0  3 12 ,9 15 ,0 0 0  

Acquisition of Notes from CVTEL issued by PT Finance 3,401,000,000 -  

3 ,4 0 1,0 0 0 ,0 0 0  

Intercompany loans:

PT Imobiliária 375,000 -  

3 7 5 ,0 0 0  -  

6 ,16 0 ,7 14 ,7 8 1 3 12 ,9 15 ,0 0 0  



   

   

 

Annual Report | 2014  35  

 

(i) Following Oi’s capital increase occurred on 5 May 2014, PT Portugal became the parent company of the Group in Portugal and 

assumed Portugal Telecom’s role in the centralized management model of all receipts and payments of subsidiaries, which was 

previously managed by Portugal Telecom. This caption reflects the receipts and payments made between PT Portugal and its 

subsidiaries in connection with this model. The financing granted by the Company under this centralized cash model have short-

term maturities and bear interest at market rates.  

 

 

(f) Short-term financial applications 

On 5 May 2014, under the internal restructuring of Portugal Telecom Group for the purpose of 

Oi’s capital increase (Note 1), along with other operations described above, PT Portugal 

acquired from Portugal Telecom the investments in debt securities issued by Rio Forte 

Investments, S.A. (holding company of the Espírito Santo Group mainly for its non financial 

investments) for its notional value of Euro 200 million, which had been subscribed  by Portugal 

Telecom on 15 April 2014 and maturing on 15 July 2014. In addition, PT Finance, an entity 

acquired by PT Portugal on 5 May 2014, also held investments in debt securities issued by Rio 

Forte Investments, S.A. with a notional value of Euro 697 million, of which Euro 647 million were 

due on 15 July 2014 and the remaining amount of Euro 50 million matured on 17 July 2014.  

As a result of the non-repayment by Rio Forte in the maturity dates mentioned above, Oi, PT 

Portugal, PT Finance and Portugal Telecom signed a Memorandum of Understanding in order 

to exchange the Rio Forte debt securities for Oi shares held by Portugal Telecom. On 8 

September 2014, following the approval at the General Meeting of Shareholders of Portugal 

Telecom, the contract was formally concluded and entered into, which provides that PT Portugal 

and PT Finance will exchange the investments in debt securities of Rio Forte, amounting to 

Euro 897 million, for 47,434,872 Oi ordinary shares plus 94,869,744 Oi preferred shares (after 

the reverse stock split undertaken by Oi in December 2014) to be delivered by Portugal 

Telecom. Following the approval of this agreement by CVM in Brazil on 4 March 2015, its 

execution is pending only the approval at the Oi’s General Shareholders Meeting to be held on 

26 March 2015. 

Based on the exchange agreement entered into on 8 September 2014 and the assumption that 

it will be approved at the Oi’s General Shareholders Meeting to be held on 26 March 2015, the 

Company measured the investments in debt securities of Rio Forte based on the fair value of Oi 

shares to be received under that agreement, which was determined based on the market quote 

of those shares. Consequently, PT Portugal and PT Finance recorded losses amounting to Euro 

114,523,595 (Note 20) and Euro 402,410,957 (Note 17), respectively, to reflect the devaluation 

of these investments for the corresponding fair value, amounting to Euro 86,426,405 and Euro 

301,196,023, respectively. 

In connection with the exchange agreement mentioned above, PT Portugal and PT Finance 

granted to PT SGPS a call option on Oi shares that allows PT SGPS to repurchase the shares 

of Oi delivered under the exchange agreement (with an exercise price of R$20.1 for ON shares 

and R$18.5 for PN shares). The main features of this call option are: 
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- The option is an American-type call (“Call”) and will be adjusted by the Brazilian CDI rate 

plus 1.5% per year; 

- The Call on the Oi Call Shares will become effective on the date of the Exchange, will 

have a 6-year maturity, and the Oi Call Shares that PT SGPS has the right to call will be 

reduced by 10% at the end of the first year and by 18% per year thereafter; 

- Any proceeds received as a result of a monetization of the Call through the issuance of 

derivatives or back to back instruments must be used to exercise the Call; 

- PT SGPS can only acquire Oi or CorpCo shares through the exercise of the Call; 

- The Call would be cancelled should (i) PT SGPS’s bylaws be voluntarily amended to 

remove the 10% voting limitation, (ii) PT SGPS act as a competitor to Oi, or (iii) PT SGPS 

breach certain obligations under the definitive documentation. 

Under the terms of the call option agreement mentioned above, Oi is jointly liable for all the 

obligations included in the agreement. The purchase and sale agreement entered into between 

Oi and Altice excludes from its object the Rio Forte debt securities, the exchange agreement 

and the call option agreement. PT Portugal thus believes that eventual obligations resulting 

from the call option agreement are outside its scope, and consequently did not record any 

liability in these financial statements. As at 31 December 2014, the estimated market value of 

this call options amounts to Euro 35 million, which was determined based on the “Black-

Scholes” model and the theoretical assumptions regarding share volatility, using the valuation 

Income Approach included in item B10 and B11 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. 

 

(g) Cash payments resulting from loans obtained 

In the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, cash receipts from loans obtained, net of cash 

payments from loans repaid, amounted Euro 5,043,687,501 and Euro 284,889,653, 

respectively, and are as follows: 

 

(a) These captions include amounts received from Portugal Telecom on 5 May 2014 for the transfer to PT Portugal of loans obtained 

by Portugal Telecom from the European Investment Bank (Euro 527 million) and retail bonds issued by Portugal Telecom in 2012 

(Euro 400 million), net of payments made by PT Portugal after 5 May 2014 for the partial reimbursement of European Investment 

Bank loans (Euro 61 million).  

(b) In 2014, this caption corresponds to the repayment to Portugal Telecom of the amounts due as at 31 December 2013, since as 

from 5 May 2014, as mentioned above, PT Portugal replaced Portugal Telecom in its role under the centralized management 

model of all receipts and payments of subsidiaries, as a result of which the Company no longer has outstanding liabilities due to 

Portugal Telecom under this model, but has instead intercompany loans granted to its subsidiaries. 

 

  

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Cash receipts (payments) under commercial paper programmes 3,508,600,000 (727,000,000)

Bonds subscribed by PT Finance 2,566,000,000 -  

Bank loans (a) 466,071,429 -  

Notes PT Taxa Fixa 2012/2016 (a) 400,000,000 -  

Cash receipts (payments) related to intercompany loans (1,806,200,000) 979,000,000 

Cash receipts (payments) under the centralised cash management system (b) (90,783,928) 32,889,653 

5 ,0 4 3 ,6 8 7 ,5 0 1 2 8 4 ,8 8 9 ,6 5 3  
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5. Changes in accounting policies and estimates and errors 

As mentioned previously (Note 2), PT Portugal presented consolidated financial statements for 

the first time in 2014, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 

(“IFRS”) as issued by the European Union, while these standalone financial statements are 

prepared in accordance with the SNC, the legal accounting standards applicable in Portugal. 

Based on the exception included in NCRF 3, under the adoption of SNC in 2010, the Company 

initially applied the dispositions of NCRF 14 only to acquisitions occurred after 1 January 2009, 

and thus the goodwill related to acquisitions occurred prior to that date were initially maintained 

as initially computed in accordance with POC, the accounting standards applicable in Portugal 

before the introduction of SNC. However, upon the adoption of IFRS in the 2014 consolidated 

financial statements, the Company chose not to apply the same exception included in IFRS 1 

First Time Adoption of IFRS, and thus applied the purchase price allocation method referred to 

above to all acquisitions occurred in previous years. Consequently, these financial statements 

were retrospectively adjusted to reflect the effects of the application of the purchase price 

allocation method to acquisitions occurred prior to 1 January 2009. The restated standalone 

balance sheets as at 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 and the restated standalone 

income statement for the year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows: 

 

 

 

Sta te me nt prior 
to re sta te me nt

Re sta te me nt 
a djustme nts

Re sta te d  
sta te me nt

ASSETS

Goodwill 1,962,895,210 (584,995,754) 1,377,899,456 

Financial investments -  equity method of accounting 5,566,871,705 (263,990,667) 5,302,881,038 

Other assets 3,625,515,247 -  3,625,515,247 

Tota l a sse ts 11,15 5 ,2 8 2 ,16 2  (8 4 8 ,9 8 6 ,4 2 1) 10 ,3 0 6 ,2 9 5 ,7 4 1 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Revaluation surplus 1,114,239,089 (848,986,421) 265,252,668 

Other shareholders' equity 5,004,855,274 -  5,004,855,274 

Tota l sha re holde rs' e quity 6 ,119 ,0 9 4 ,3 6 3  (8 4 8 ,9 8 6 ,4 2 1) 5 ,2 7 0 ,10 7 ,9 4 2  

Tota l lia bilitie s 5 ,0 3 6 ,18 7 ,7 9 9  -  5 ,0 3 6 ,18 7 ,7 9 9  

Tota l lia bilitie s a nd sha re holde rs' e quity 11,15 5 ,2 8 2 ,16 2  (8 4 8 ,9 8 6 ,4 2 1) 10 ,3 0 6 ,2 9 5 ,7 4 1 

Balance sheet as at 1 January 2013

Sta te me nt prior 
to re sta te me nt

Re sta te me nt 
a djustme nts

Re sta te d  
sta te me nt

ASSETS

Goodwill 1,962,895,210 (584,995,753) 1,377,899,457 

Financial investments -  equity method of accounting 4,741,637,660 (358,215,520) 4,383,422,140 

Other assets 3,961,714,275 -  3,961,714,275 

Tota l a sse ts 10 ,6 6 6 ,2 4 7 ,14 5  (9 4 3 ,2 11,2 7 3 ) 9 ,7 2 3 ,0 3 5 ,8 7 2  

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Revaluation surplus 1,135,255,110 (848,986,421) 286,268,689 

Net income (38,709,110) (94,224,852) (132,933,962)

Other shareholders' equity 4,335,271,225 -  4,335,271,225 

Tota l sha re holde rs' e quity 5 ,4 3 1,8 17 ,2 2 5  (9 4 3 ,2 11,2 7 3 ) 4 ,4 8 8 ,6 0 5 ,9 5 2  

Tota l lia bilitie s 5 ,2 3 4 ,4 2 9 ,9 2 0  -  5 ,2 3 4 ,4 2 9 ,9 2 0  

Tota l lia bilitie s a nd sha re holde rs' e quity 10 ,6 6 6 ,2 4 7 ,14 5  (9 4 3 ,2 11,2 7 3 ) 9 ,7 2 3 ,0 3 5 ,8 7 2  

Balance sheet as at 31 December 2013

Sta te me nt prior 
to re sta te me nt

Re sta te me nt 
a djustme nts

Re sta te d  
sta te me nt

Equity losses of affiliated companies (46,688,522) (94,224,852) (140,913,374)

Other operating income (3,549,868) -  (3,549,868)

Ope ra ting inc ome (5 0 ,2 3 8 ,3 9 0 ) (9 4 ,2 2 4 ,8 5 2 ) (14 4 ,4 6 3 ,2 4 2 )

Inc ome  be fore  ta xe s (3 4 ,7 17 ,6 2 2 ) (9 4 ,2 2 4 ,8 5 2 ) (12 8 ,9 4 2 ,4 7 4 )

Ne t inc ome (3 8 ,7 0 9 ,110 ) (9 4 ,2 2 4 ,8 5 2 ) (13 2 ,9 3 3 ,9 6 2 )

Income statement for the year ended 31 december 2013
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Except for the above mentioned, the Company did not adopt any new or revised standard or 

interpretation during the year ended 31 December 2014, and did not voluntarily change other 

accounting policies or accounting estimates. 

 

6. Goodwill 

The goodwill composition as at 31 December 2014 and 2013, recorded following the acquisition 

of subsidiaries, is as follows: 

 

For the purposes of the impairment analysis as at 31 December 2014, the recoverable amount 

of the telecommunications businesses was based on Altice’s offer for the acquisition from Oi of 

the domestic businesses of PT Portugal, as explained in Notes 1 and 3.10. As a result of this 

analysis, we recorded an impairment loss of Euro 867 million (Note 17), corresponding to the 

difference between the Altice offer, adjusted for the effects described in Note 3.10, and the 

carrying value of the Portugal businesses. This loss was recorded directly in the financial 

statements of the subsidiary Meo Communications, reducing the goodwill included in the 

financial statements of that entity, as a result of which the goodwill recorded in these standalone 

financial statements has not changed, but the goodwill reflected in the consolidated financial 

statements was reduced by the amount of the impairment loss. 

 

7. Financial investments - equity method of accounting 

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the movements occurred in this caption 

were as follows: 

 

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13
(re sta te d)

Meo Comunicações 2006 1,357,665,865 1,357,665,865 

PT Contact 2009 20,230,223 20,230,223 

PT Sales 2009 3,368 3,368 

1,3 7 7 ,8 9 9 ,4 5 6  1,3 7 7 ,8 9 9 ,4 5 6  

Ac quisition 
da te

Euro

20 14

Inve stme nts 
in subsidia ry 

compa nie s

Ca pita l 
c ontributions in 

subsidia ry 
c ompa nies

Adva nce s 
for fina nc ia l 
inve stme nts Tota l

Gross a mount

Opening balance (1,852,437) 4,383,424,150 1,850,427 4,383,422,140 

Increases 259,036,931 21,500,000 -  280,536,931 

Reductions (Note 4.b) (8,451,900) (3,114,000,000) -  (3,122,451,900)

Equity method (1,605,585,464) -  -  (1,605,585,464)

Dividends (Note 4.c) (30,087,056) -  -  (30,087,056)

Transfers (Note 14) 1,439,857,656 (1,236,466,191) -  203,391,465 

Other 1,850,427 -  (1,850,427) -  

Ca rrying amount 54 ,76 8 ,157  5 4 ,4 57 ,95 9  -  10 9 ,22 6 ,116  
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a) Increases 

In the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, increases in financial investments recorded 

by the equity method of accounting, including goodwill and paid-in capital contributions granted, 

were as follows: 

 
(i) As explained in Note 1, until 5 May 2014, PT Portugal acquired from Portugal Telecom a set of financial investments that were part 

of the assets to be contributed by Portugal Telecom to Oi’s capital increase on 5 May 2014. 

(ii) In 2014, the Company granted additional paid in capital contributions to PT Data Center amounting to Euro 21,500,00, including 

Euro 14,000,000 paid in cash (Note 4) and Euro 7,500,000 through the conversion of loans granted (Note 8). In 2013, the Company 

granted additional paid-in capital contributions to PT Data Center through the conversion of loans granted amounting to Euro 

3,535,000 (Note 8).  

   

Euro

20 13  

Resta te d

Inve stme nts 
in subsidia ry 

compa nie s

Ca pita l 
c ontributions in 

subsidia ry 
c ompa nies

Adva nce s 
for fina nc ia l 
inve stme nts Tota l

Gross a mount

Opening balance 922,991,889 4,379,889,150 -  5,302,881,039 

Increases 3,500,000 3,535,000 1,850,427 8,885,427 

Equity method (925,278,680) -  -  (925,278,680)

Dividends (Note 4.b) (3,065,646) -  -  (3,065,646)

Ca rrying amount (1,8 5 2 ,43 7 ) 4 ,38 3 ,4 24 ,15 0  1,85 0 ,4 27  4 ,38 3 ,4 22 ,14 0  

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Acquisition of shares of subsidiary companies (i):

PT Finance (a) 250,189,234 -  

PT Investimentos (b) 4,702,322 -  

PT Brasil (c) 2,662,714 -  

PT CC (d) 1,482,662 -  

Incorporation of PT Pay (Note 4) -  3,500,000 

259,036,931 3,500,000 

Additional paid- in capital contributions granted

PT Data Center (ii) 21,500,000 3,535,000 

21,500,000 3,535,000 

Advance on the acquisition of investments (Note 4) -  1,850,427 

2 8 0 ,5 3 6 ,9 3 1 8 ,8 8 5 ,4 2 7  
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b) Reductions 

In the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, reductions in financial investments recorded 

by the equity method of accounting were as follows: 

 
 

c) Equity method of accounting 

In the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the movements occurred in investments in 

subsidiaries and associated companies resulting from the application of the equity method of 

accounting were recorded as follows: 

   

 

8. Related parties 

8.1. Balances with Group companies 

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the captions “Balances with Group companies” included in 

current and non-current assets and in current liabilities have the following composition: 

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Reimbursement of additional paid in capital contributions (Note 4)

Meo Comunicações 3,114,000,000 -  

3 ,114 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0  -  

Capital reduction (Note 4):

PT Pro 5,302,000 -  

PT Inovação 2,300,000 -  

PT Contact 550,500 -  

PT Cloud e Data Centers 299,400 -  

8 ,4 5 1,9 0 0  -  

3 ,12 2 ,4 5 1,9 0 0  -  

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Re sta te d

Losses in subsidiaries and associated companies (Notes 8 and 17) (2,538,805,204) (276,710,652)

Adjustments to financial assets (Note 13) 933,219,740 (648,568,028)

(1,6 0 5 ,5 8 5 ,4 6 4 ) (9 2 5 ,2 7 8 ,6 8 0 )
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(a) As at 31 December 2014, loans granted have the following composition: 

 

(b) As at 31 December 2014, this caption includes Notes issued by PT Finance, initially subscribed by CV TEL, from which PT Portugal 

acquired these securities in December 2014 for the respective nocional amount (Note 4). 

(c) As at 31 December 2014, this caption includes amounts receivable from subsidiaries relating to  income tax recorded by these entities 

and the withholding made by third parties to subsidiaries, both to be settled with PT Portugal in 2015 under the special regime for taxation 

of groups companies, which was adopted by PT Portugal with effect on 1 January 2014, as explained in Notes 3.5 and 9. As at 31 December 

2013, this caption  includes the tax payable by PT Portugal to Portugal Telecom under this entity’s special regime for the taxation of groups 

companies.  

 

(d) As at 31 December 2014, this caption includes financings granted under the centralized cash management system, which was 

previously managed by Portugal Telecom and was transferred to PT Portugal as from May 2014. The composition of this captions 

ias as follows (Note 4):  

 
(e) This caption includes short-term loans granted to PT Imobiliária during 2014 (Note 4). 

(f) This caption includes interest receivable related to loans granted to subsidiaries. 

(g) This caption includes interests payable to Portugal Telecom under the loans due to this entity while it was the Company’s only 

shareholder. Both the loans and interest were settled in 2014, before Oi’s share capital increase of 5 May. 

  

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

DEBIT BALANCES

Non- Curre nt

Loans granted (a) 6,285,827,460 3,871,980,000 

Notes issued by PT Finance (Note 4) (b) 3,401,000,000 -  

Tota l non- c urre nt 9 ,6 8 6 ,8 2 7 ,4 6 0  3 ,8 7 1,9 8 0 ,0 0 0  

Curre nt

Accounts receivable within the tax consolidation regime (c) 18,898,410 -  

Intercompany loans granted within the centralised cash management system (d) 31,997,781 -  

Other loans granted (e) 375,000 -  

Other (f) 3,410,947 892,434 

Tota l c urre nt 5 4 ,6 8 2 ,13 8  8 9 2 ,4 3 4  

Tota l 9 ,7 4 1,5 0 9 ,5 9 8  3 ,8 7 2 ,8 7 2 ,4 3 4  

CREDIT BALANCES

Curre nt

Accounts payable within the tax consolidation regime (c) 787,326 3,991,488 

Other (g) -  25,344,509 

Tota l c re dit ba la nc e s with Sha re holde rs a nd Group c ompa nie s 7 8 7 ,3 2 6  2 9 ,3 3 5 ,9 9 7  

Euro

Me o 
Comunica çõe s

PT Inovaçã o e  
S itemas

P T
Contac t

PT Da ta
Ce nte r

PT 
Investime ntos

PT Centro 
Corpora tivo

P T Cloud e  
Da ta  

Cente rs Tota l

Ba lance  as a t 31 Dec ember 2013 3 ,7 79 ,000 ,000  24 ,60 0 ,0 00  11,600 ,00 0  5 6 ,7 80 ,000  -  -  -  3 ,8 71,980 ,000  

Loans granted (Note 4) 2,558,350,000 41,160,000 3,600,000 20,302,000 5,000,000 30,500,000 68,430,000 2,727,342,000 

Loans reimbursement (291,994,540) -  -  (14,000,000) -  -  -  (305,994,540)

Loans transfered to additional capital contributions (Note 7) -  -  -  (7,500,000) -  -  -  (7,500,000)

Ba lance  as a t 31 Dec ember 2014 6 ,0 45 ,355 ,460  65 ,76 0 ,0 00  15 ,200 ,00 0  5 5 ,5 82 ,000  5 ,0 00 ,000  3 0 ,50 0 ,0 00  68 ,43 0 ,00 0  6 ,2 85 ,8 27 ,460  

Euro
2 014

Meo Comunicações 10,718,032 

PT Sales 10,554,468 

PT CC 3,716,366 

PT Inovação e Sistemas 2,469,178 

PT Pro 2,307,414 

PT Contact 1,689,987 

PT Imobiliária 34,615 

PT Cloud e Data Centers 387,106 

Directel 97,680 

PT Investimentos 52,804 

PT Partic ipações 29,832 

PT Ventures 23,680 

PT Móveis 23,128 

PT Prestações (106,509)

3 1,9 97 ,7 8 1 
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8.2. Financial investments in subsidiaries companies 

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the detail of Portugal Telecom’s financial investments in its 

subsidiaries companies is as follows (Note 7): 

 

(a) As at 31 December 2014, provisions for financial investments is net of additional paid-in capital contributions, amounting to Euro 

1,236,466,191. 

(b) As at 31 December 2014, the provision for financial investements reflects mainly the loss recorded by this entity regarding the Rio 

Forte investments, amounting to Euro 402,410,957 (Note 17). 

 

  

2014 2 013

Company na me Hea d offic e % he ld
Fina nc ia l 

inve stme nt

Additiona l
pa id- in capita l

contributions Provisions
Share  on ne t 

income % he ld
Financ ia l 

investment

Additiona l
pa id- in ca pita l

contributions
Sha re  on ne t 

inc ome

Meo Comunicações (a) Av. Fontes Pereira de Melo, 40, Lisboa 100.0% -  -  (35,038,314) (2,129,843,622) 100.0% 282,852,949 4,350,466,191 (210,225,304)

PT Finance (b) Cayman Islands 100.0% -  -  (168,353,151) (418,542,384) -  -  -  -  

PT Inovação e Sistemas
Rua Engenheiro José Ferreira Pinto Basto, 
Aveiro 100.0% 24,519,706 11,993,990 -  6,465,574 100.0% 22,019,016 11,993,990 9,084,817 

PT Investimentos Av. Fontes Pereira de Melo, 40, Lisboa 100.0% 8,034,505 -  -  3,508,359 -  -  -  -  

PT Contact Av. Afonso Costa, 4, Lisboa 100.0% 6,878,932 6,000,000 -  4,414,741 100.0% 8,084,721 6,000,000 5,259,958 

PT Pro Rua de Entrecampos, 28, Lisboa 100.0% 4,512,922 -  -  1,035,265 100.0% 31,779,657 -  23,701,674 

PT Cloud e Data Centers
Taguspark, Av. Jacques Delors, Edifíc ios 
Inovação III e IV, Oeiras 99.8% 3,348,705 10,028,969 -  8,820,362 99.8% (5,186,962) 10,028,969 (2,441,762)

Previsão Rua de Entrecampos, 28, Lisboa 82.05% 2,007,983 -  -  3,900 82% 2,051,774 -  195,920 

PT PAY Av. Fontes Pereira de Melo, 40, Lisboa 100.0% 1,698,512 -  -  (1,418,380) 100.0% 3,116,891 -  (383,110)

PT CC Av. Fontes Pereira de Melo, 40, Lisboa 100.0% 1,999,854 -  -  515,702 -  -  -  -  

PT Brasil Rua Cubatão, 320, São Paulo 100.0% 1,052,381 -  -  (1,618,651) -  -  -  -  

PT Data Center Rua António Augisto de Aguiar, 2, Covilhã 100.0% 640,047 26,435,000 -  (12,160,679) 100.0% 13,348,407 4,935,000 (7,765,049)

PT Sales Av. Fontes Pereira de Melo, 40, Lisboa 100.0% 74,610 -  -  14,609 100.0% 147,056 -  87,056 

5 4 ,76 8 ,157  54 ,4 57 ,9 59 (2 03 ,3 91,465 ) (2 ,53 8 ,80 5 ,204 ) 3 58 ,213 ,5 09  4 ,3 83 ,42 4 ,150 (182 ,485 ,8 00 )
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In 2014 and 2013, the main financial information regarding the above mentioned entities, is as 

follows: 

 

  

2 014

Company name He ad offic e % he ld Asse ts Lliabilitie s

Se rvic e s 
re nde re d 

a nd sa le s Ne t income
Share holde rs' 

equity

Meo Comunicações Av. Fontes Pereira de Melo, 40, Lisboa 100.0% 9,799,084,265 9,834,122,579 2,416,975,362 (2,129,843,622) (35,038,314)

PT Finance Cayman Islands 100.0% 8,568,963,074 8,737,316,225 -  (418,542,384) (168,353,151)

PT Inovação e Sistemas
Rua Engenheiro José Ferreira Pinto Basto, 
Aveiro 100.0% 180,582,958 144,069,262 110,846,447 6,465,574 36,513,696 

PT Investimentos Av. Fontes Pereira de Melo, 40, Lisboa 100.0% 21,056,676 13,022,170 12,046,117 3,508,359 8,034,505 

PT Contact Av. Afonso Costa, 4, Lisboa 100.0% 74,895,469 62,016,537 107,577,381 4,414,741 12,878,932 

PT Pro Rua de Entrecampos, 28, Lisboa 100.0% 36,366,422 31,853,501 46,041,362 1,035,265 4,512,922 

PT Cloud e Data Centers
Taguspark, Av. Jacques Delors, Edifíc ios 
Inovação III e IV, Oeiras 99.8% 112,675,974 99,291,590 54,427,171 8,838,038 13,384,385 

Previsão Rua de Entrecampos, 28, Lisboa 82.05% 3,022,325 575,027 971,618 4,753 2,447,298 

PT PAY Av. Fontes Pereira de Melo, 40, Lisboa 100.0% 5,262,507 3,563,995 50,498 (1,418,380) 1,698,512 

PT CC Av. Fontes Pereira de Melo, 40, Lisboa 100.0% 69,441,983 67,442,129 73,055,001 515,702 1,999,854 

PT Brasil Rua Cubatão, 320, São Paulo 100.0% 24,601,183 23,548,802 151,842 (1,618,651) 1,052,381 

PT Data Center Rua António Augisto de Aguiar, 2, Covilhã 100.0% 94,073,678 66,998,631 -  (12,160,679) 27,075,047 

PT Sales Av. Fontes Pereira de Melo, 40, Lisboa 100.0% 30,201,575 30,126,964 58,885,717 14,609 74,610 

2 013

Compa ny na me He ad offic e % he ld Asse ts Llia bilitie s

Se rvic es 
rende re d a nd 

sa les Ne t inc ome
Shareholde rs' 

e quity

Meo Comunicações Av. Fontes Pereira de Melo, 40, Lisboa 100.0% 13,867,014,335 9,233,695,195 1,708,536,782 (210,225,304) 4,633,319,140 

PT Inovação e Sistemas
Rua Engenheiro José Ferreira Pinto Basto, 
Aveiro 100.0% 105,940,889 71,927,884 68,950,627 9,084,817 34,013,005 

PT Contact Av. Afonso Costa, 4, Lisboa 100.0% 65,427,736 51,343,015 116,332,239 5,259,958 14,084,721 

PT Pro Rua de Entrecampos, 28, Lisboa 100.0% 73,492,905 41,713,248 55,514,491 23,701,674 31,779,657 

PT Cloud e Data Centers
Taguspark, Av. Jacques Delors, Edifíc ios 
Inovação III e IV, Oeiras 99.8% 50,673,886 45,842,272 91,795,072 (2,446,656) 4,831,614 

PT PAY Av. Fontes Pereira de Melo, 40, Lisboa 100.0% 5,284,713 2,167,821 -  (383,109) 3,116,891 

PT Data Center Rua António Augisto de Aguiar, 2, Covilhã 100.0% 87,297,793 69,014,386 -  (7,765,049) 18,283,407 

PT Sales Av. Fontes Pereira de Melo, 40, Lisboa 100.0% 20,466,769 20,319,713 54,650,403 87,056 147,056 
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8.3. Balances and transactions with related parties 

Besides the receivables and payables included under the captions “Balances with Group 

companies”, the Company has other receivables and payables with related parties included in 

other captions. The nature and detail of the main balances with related parties as at 31 

December 2014 and 2013 are as follows: 

 

 

 

In the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the nature and detail of the main transactions 

with related parties are as follows:  

 

 

 

 

 

Euro

2 014

Sha reholders 
and Group 
compa nie s 

Taxe s 
rec e iva ble

Othe r a cc ounts 
re ce ivable  income 

inc rea se  
Tota l a cc ounts 

rec e iva ble
Loa ns obta ined 

(Note  15 )

Sha reholders 
a nd Group 
compa nie s 

Acc rue d 
e xpe nse s (Note  

13 ) Supplie rs
Tota l a cc ounts 

paya ble

Meo Comunicações 6,057,882,505 -  94,245,173 6 ,152 ,127 ,6 78  -  (451,308) (63,476) (2,605,835) (3 ,12 0 ,618 )

PT Inovação e Sistemas 68,872,856 -  750,658 69 ,6 23 ,514  -  (263) -  -  (26 3 )

PT Contact 18,620,663 -  443,353 19 ,0 64 ,015  -  -  -  -  -  

PT SGPS (374) 17,824,362 1,000,000 18 ,8 23 ,9 89  -  -  -  (1,845) (1,84 5 )

PT CC 34,987,832 -  281,641 3 5 ,269 ,4 73  -  -  (127,494) (900,012) (1,0 27 ,50 6 )

PT Data Center 56,724,597 -  907,474 57 ,6 32 ,07 1 -  (183) -  -  (18 3 )

PT Sales 10,742,736 -  103,588 10 ,8 46 ,3 24  -  -  -  -  -  

PT Móveis 14,431,847 -  327,231 14 ,7 59 ,0 78  -  (109,093) -  -  (109 ,09 3 )

PT Ventures 23,680 -  597 24 ,2 77  -  -  -  -  -  

Directel 98,417 -  959 99 ,3 76  -  -  -  -  -  

PT PRO 2,698,746 -  81,812 2 ,7 80 ,5 58  -  (164,592) -  -  (164 ,59 2 )

PT Investimentos 5,179,107 -  42,684 5 ,22 1,79 1 -  -  -  -  -  

PT Partic ipações 29,832 -  39,128 68 ,9 60  -  -  -  -  -  

PT Imobiliária 409,615 -  4,332 4 13 ,9 47  -  -  -  -  -  

PT -  Associação de Cuidados de Saúde -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (24,626) (24 ,62 6 )

PT Finance 3,401,000,000 -  5,292,342 3 ,40 6 ,2 92 ,3 42  (2,566,000,000) -  (5,264,257) -  (2 ,5 71,2 64 ,25 7 )

PT Cloud e Data Centers 69,913,641 -  1,453,704 71,3 67 ,3 45  -  (6,256) -  -  (6 ,25 6 )

PT Prestações (106,103) -  -  (10 6 ,10 3 ) -  (55,631) (1,206) -  (56 ,83 7 )

9 ,74 1,50 9 ,5 98  17 ,82 4 ,3 62  104 ,9 74 ,67 6  9 ,86 4 ,3 08 ,6 36  (2 ,5 66 ,0 00 ,00 0 ) (7 87 ,32 6 ) (5 ,45 6 ,432 ) (3 ,532 ,3 17 ) (2 ,5 75 ,7 76 ,07 6 )

Euro

2 013

Sha re holde rs 
and Group 
compa nies 

Taxes 
re ce ivable

Other ac counts 
re ce ivable  income 

inc rea se  
Tota l a cc ounts 

re ce ivable
Loans obta ine d 

(Note  15 )

Shareholders 
and Group 
c ompanies 

Acc rue d 
expenses (Note  

13 ) Supplie rs
Tota l ac counts 

pa yable

Meo Comunicações 3,779,000,000 86,929,527 3 ,86 5 ,9 29 ,5 27  -  -  (817,018) (25) (817 ,04 3 )

MEO, S.A. -  -  -  -  -  (1,731,629,847) -  (1,7 31,6 29 ,84 7 )

PT Inovação e Sistemas 24,600,000 699,344 2 5 ,299 ,3 44  -  -  -  -  -  

PT Contact 11,761,958 205,765 11,9 67 ,7 23  -  -  -  -  -  

PT SGPS -  -  -  (1,896,983,928) (29,335,997) (34,008,301) -  (1,9 60 ,3 28 ,22 5 )

PT CC -  -  -  -  -  -  (113,850) (113 ,85 0 )

PT Data Center 57,510,476 957,086 5 8 ,467 ,5 62  -  -  -  -  -  

3 ,87 2 ,87 2 ,4 34  -  88 ,79 1,72 2  3 ,9 61,6 64 ,157  (1,8 96 ,9 83 ,92 8 ) (29 ,3 35 ,99 7 ) (1,76 6 ,4 55 ,166 ) (113 ,875 ) (3 ,6 92 ,8 88 ,96 5 )

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Supplie s a nd
exte rna l
se rvic e s

Wa ges a nd 
sa la rie s

Othe r 
ope ra tiona l 

c osts
Ne t inte re st 
inc ome ,  ne t

Supplies a nd
e xte rna l
se rvic e s

Wa ges a nd 
sa la rie s

Ne t inte re st 
inc ome ,  ne t

Meo Comunicações -  824,474 -  (259,930,205) -  1,082,183 (185,221,391)

MEO, S.A. -  -  -  -  -  1,324,145 -  

PT Sales -  -  -  (103,488) -  -  -  

PT Data Center -  -  -  (2,957,616) -  -  (1,687,562)

PT SGPS -  -  -  34,401,589 -  -  83,904,796 

PT CC 3,212,902 -  -  (1,053,439) 178,995 -  -  

PT Móveis -  -  -  (327,231) -  -  -  

PT Ventures -  -  -  (597) -  -  -  

Directel -  -  -  (959) -  -  -  

PT PRO -  -  -  (81,712) -  -  -  

PT Investimentos -  -  -  (169,208) -  -  -  

PT Participações -  -  -  (39,128) -  -  -  

PT Contact -  -  -  (906,685) -  -  (554,886)

PT Imobiliária -  -  -  (4,332) -  -  -  

PT-  Associação Cuidados Saúde -  24,626 -  -  -  -  -  

PT Finance -  -  4,810,767 24,734,277 -  -  -  

PT Inovação e Sistemas -  -  -  (2,421,102) -  -  (1,215,128)

PT Cloud e Data Centers -  -  -  (1,745,751) -  -  -  

PT Prestações -  -  -  1,206 

3 ,2 12 ,9 0 2  8 49 ,10 0  4 ,8 10 ,7 6 7  (2 10 ,6 0 4 ,3 8 2 ) 17 8 ,9 9 5  2 ,4 0 6 ,3 2 8  (10 4 ,7 7 4 ,17 2 )
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8.4. Other information 

During the year ended 31 December 2014, fixed remunerations paid to board members and key 

employees amounted to Euro 3.3 million and variable remunerations paid amounted to Euro 2.1 

million. In 2014, some board members and key employees received remunerations through 

Portugal Telecom.  

In addition to the above mentioned remunerations, executive board members are entitled to 

fringe benefits primarily utilized in their daily functions, in connection with a policy defined for the 

Group.  

In 2014, terminations payments to former board members and key employees amounted to 2.5 

million. 

In addition to the amounts mentioned above, there are certain responsibilities resulting from the 

management agreements entered into on 13 November 2014 by the Remunerations Committee 

with board members. 

To comply with the article 508 of the Portuguese Companies Act, the Company’s auditor, KPMG 

& Associados – SROC, billed PT Portugal Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 a 

total amount of Euro 839 thousand regarding tax consultancy services and a total amount of 

Euro 671 thousand regarding assurance and reliability services other than those related the 

financial statements audit. During the year ended 31 December 2014, KPMG & Associados – 

SROC did not bill any amount related to the financial statements audit, because it became the 

Company’s auditor only as from 2 December 2014. 

 

9. Income taxes 

9.1. Introduction 

In 2013, the Companies located in Portugal were subject to Corporate Income Tax at a rate of 

25%, which was increased up to (1) a maximum of 1.5% of taxable income through a municipal 

tax and by a 3.0% state surcharge applicable to taxable income between Euro 1.5 million and 

Euro 7.5 million and 5.0% state surcharge applicable to taxable income in excess of Euro 7.5 

million, leading to a maximum aggregate tax rate of approximately 31.5% for taxable income 

higher than Euro 7.5 million. 

In 2014, following a change in tax legislation approved in December 2013 that reduced the tax 

base rate by 2% and created a new level for the state surchage, companies located in mainland 

Portugal are subject to Corporate Income Tax at a base rate of 23%, increased (1) up to a 

maximum of 1.5% of taxable income through a municipal tax, and (2) by a state surcharge 

levied at the rates of 3.0% on taxable income between Euro 1.5 million and Euro 7.5 million, 

5.0% on taxable income between Euro 7.5 million and Euro 35.0 million and 7.0% on taxable 
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income in excess of Euro 35.0 million, resulting in a maximum aggregate tax rate of 

approximately 31.5% for taxable income higher than Euro 35.0 million. 

As from 1 January 2015, following a change in tax legislation approved in December 2014 that 

reduced the tax base rate by 2%, companies located in mainland Portugal are subject to 

Corporate Income Tax at a base rate of 21%, increased (1) up to a maximum of 1.5% of taxable 

income through a municipal tax, and (2) by a state surcharge levied at the rates of 3.0% on 

taxable income between Euro 1.5 million and Euro 7.5 million, 5.0% on taxable income between 

Euro 7.5 million and Euro 35.0 million and 7.0% on taxable income in excess of Euro 35.0 

million, resulting in a maximum aggregate tax rate of approximately 29.5% for taxable income 

higher than Euro 35.0 million. 

Income taxes are computed based on the tax rate mentioned above and are determined on the 

basis of profit before-tax adjusted in accordance with tax legislation. 

In 2014, as referred to in Note 3.5, Portugal adopted the Special Taxation Regime for Groups of 

Companies (“RETGS”), and computed the provision for income taxes based on the assumption 

that the tax authorities will authorize the company to apply that regime as from 1 January 2014, 

including in the tax consolidation perimeter all entities in which the Company holds at least a 

75% interest since the beginning of the year, as a result of which the entities acquired in 2014 

from PT SGPS, directly or indirectly, were excluded. Therefore, the 2014 tax consolidation 

perimeter includes the following entities: Meo Comunicações; PT Contact; PT Inovação e 

Sistemas; PT Móveis; PT Pro; PT Cloud; PT Prestações; PT Sales; Openidea, Tecnologias de 

Telecomunicações e Sistemas de Informação; PT Data Center; and PT BlueClip. Up to 2013, 

PT Portugal and its subsidiaries were included in the RETGS of PT SGPS and thus paid income 

taxes directly to this entity. Any gain generated by the RETGS applied by PT SGPS, resulting 

from the tax losses recorded by the entities included in the tax consolidation group, was 

recorded directly in the earnings of the holding company PT SGPS and not in the entity that had 

generated the tax loss. Notwithstanding, eventual benefits or tax credits were maintained in the 

entities where those were originated. 

In accordance with the prevailing legislation, tax returns are subject to review and correction by 

the tax authorities during a period of four years (five years for Social Security and for the 

contributions made in respect to years prior to 2001 for a ten years period), except where there 

have been tax losses, tax benefits have been granted, or there are inspections, claims or 

challenges under way; in such cases, these periods may be extended or suspended, depending 

on the circumstances. Based upon the information supplied by its tax advisory services, the 

Board of Directors considers that any corrections to the tax returns that might result from 

reviews carried out by the tax authorities will not have a material effect on the financial 

statements as at 31 December 2014. 
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9.2. Deferred taxes 

As at 31 December 2014, deferred tax assets amounting to Euro 65,392,997 relate to the tax 

loss generated by the tax consolidation group, based on the assumption that PT Portugal will be 

allowed to apply the special tax regime for groups of companies as from 1 January 2014, as 

mentioned above. In accordance with current tax legislation, tax losses can be used with a limit 

of 75% of taxable income in each year, for a 12 years period. The tax loss was initially recorded 

by an amount of Euro 71,620,902 (Note 9.3) based on the tax rate applicable for the year ended 

31 December 2014, and was subsequently adjusted for the change in the tax rate from 23% to 

21% (Note 9.1) applicable as from 1 January 2015, the impact of which amounted to Euro 

6.227.905 (Note 9.2). 

 

9.3. Tax rate reconciliation 

In the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the reconciliation between the expected tax 

computed by applying the nominal tax rate to income before taxes and the total income tax is as 

follows: 

 
(a) Permanent differences are as follows: 

  
   

(b) As at 31 December 2014, PT Portugal had tax losses amounting to Euro 115 million that were not recorded as 

deferred tax assets, the tax effect of which amounted to Euro 24 million. 

 

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Re sta te d

Inc ome  be fore  ta xe s (2 ,6 5 1,2 2 2 ,9 9 2 ) (12 8 ,9 4 2 ,4 7 4 )

Nominal tax rate 23.0% 30.0%

Expe c te d ta x (6 0 9 ,7 8 1,2 8 8 ) (3 8 ,6 8 2 ,7 4 2 )

Permanent differences (a) 577,183,038 42,274,230 

Deferred tax assets not recognised in the period (b) 24,049,955 -  

Tax losses used in RETGS (Note 9.2) (71,620,902) -  

Change in tax rate (Note 9.2) 8,518,376 -  

Autonomous taxation -  595,000 

Other (8,373) (195,000)

(7 1,6 5 9 ,19 3 ) 3 ,9 9 1,4 8 8  

Inc ome  ta x

Income tax- current (6,266,196) 3,991,488 

Deferred tax (65,392,997) -  

(7 1,6 5 9 ,19 3 ) 3 ,9 9 1,4 8 8  

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Re sta ted
Equity method of accounting (Note 17) 2,538,805,204 276,710,652 

Other gains in subsidiaries (Note 17) (27,130,698) (135,797,278)

Savings from tax consolidation (Note 17) (7,903,742) -  

Non- deductible expenses relating to the acquisition of PT Finance (Note 20) 4,810,767 -  

Provisions for tax contigencies 909,812 -  

Other 127 727 

2 ,5 0 9 ,49 1,4 7 0  140 ,9 14 ,101 

Nominal tax rate 23.0% 30.0%

57 7 ,183 ,0 3 8  42 ,2 7 4 ,23 0  
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10. State and other public entities  

As at 31 December 2014, this caption consists of: 

 
(a) The receivable balance under this caption includes (1) payments on account made to the Portuguese State, in connection with PT 

Portugal’s tax consolidation regime, amounting to Euro 17.2 million (Note 4), (2) tax receivables from the Portuguese State related 

to the municipal tax incorrectly charged in previous years under the Portugal Telecom’s tax consolidation, amounting to Euro 15.5 

million, and (3) withholding taxes amounting to Euro 1.7 million. The payable balance corresponds to the state surcharge payable 

related to the entities of the tax consolidation perimeter that recorded a tax profit in 2014, since on a consolidated basis it was 

recorded a tax loss. 

  

11. Other accounts receivable  

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the detail of this caption is as follows: 

 

(a) This caption corresponds to financial charges to be billed under the loans grantes to subsidiaries (Note 8). 

 

 

12. Deferrals 

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the detail of this caption is as follows: 

   

Deferred capital gains recorded as a result of the disposal of financial investments to other 

Group companies are recognized in earnings upon the disposal of the investments to outside 

the Group or on the same proportion that goodwill or assets and liabilities identified under the 

purchase price allocation are recognized in net income by the acquirers. Both the recognition of 

capital gains and the effect of the recognition of goodwill, indirectly through the equity method of 

Euro

Re c e iva ble Pa ya ble

Corporate income taxes (a) 35,228,134 4,736,974 

Social security taxes -  68,296 

Personnel income taxes -  57,424 

Value added tax -  8,853 

Other taxes 534,627 -  

3 5 ,7 6 2 ,7 6 1 4 ,8 7 1,5 4 7  

2 0 14

Euro

2 0 14 20 13

OTHER ACCOUNTS  RECEIVABLE

Unbilled financial charges  (Note 8) (a) 104,311,124 88,791,722 

Other 7,340 -  

Tota l othe r ac c ounts re c e iva ble 10 4 ,3 18 ,4 6 4  8 8 ,7 9 1,7 2 2  

Euro

2 0 14 2 013

PREPAID EXPENSES

Curre nt

Commissions and other financial expenses 10,830,027 47,013 

Tota l e xpe nse s to be  re c orded 10 ,8 3 0 ,0 2 7  4 7 ,0 13  

DEFERRED INCOME

Non- Curre nt

Deferred capital gains 1,493,802,360 1,520,933,056 

Tota l inc omes to be  re c orde d 1,49 3 ,8 0 2 ,3 6 0  1,5 2 0 ,9 3 3 ,0 5 6  
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accounting, are included under the caption “Equity in earnings (losses) of affiliated companies” 

(Note 17).  

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, deferred capital gains recorded under this caption relate to 

the sale to PT Comunicações of the investments previously held by PT Portugal in TMN 

(incorporated in PT Comunicações on 29 December 2014), concluded in 2010. In 2011, PT 

Comunicações concluded the purchase price allocation of the investment in TMN, acquired from 

PT Portugal, as a result of which recognized certain fair value adjustments corresponding to the 

difference between the fair value and carrying value of certain intangible assets, amortized by 

the useful lifes of those intangible assets. Consequently, in the years ended 31 December 2014 

and 2013, the Company recognized in earnings a portion of the deferred capital gains recorded 

in 2010, amounting to Euro 27,130,698 and Euro 135,797,278, respectively (Note 17). The 

reduction is primarily explained by the impact of the change in the tax rate recorded in 2014 

regarding the deferred tax liability associated with the fair value adjustments, which was initially 

recorded based on the tax rate applicable to TMN that was replaced by the tax rate applicable 

to PT Comunicações following the incorporation of TMN in PT Comunicações. Thus, deferred 

capital gains as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 amounted to Euro 1,493,802,360 and Euro 

1,520,933,056, respectively. 

 

13. Shareholders’ equity 

13.1. Share capital 

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company’s share capital was fully paid and amounted 

to Euro 3,450,000,000 and Euro 2,200,000,000, respectively.   

On 27 December 2013, the Company’s share capital was increased to Euro 2,200,000,000 

reflecting a share capital increase subscribed in cash by Portugal Telecom, amounting to Euro 

2,100,000,000, through the increase in the nominal value of all shares, from Euro 2,000 to Euro 

44,000 per share. 

On 5 May 2014, Portugal Telecom contributed to Oi share capital increase its 100% interest in 

PT Portugal, as a result of which Oi became the only shareholder of PT Portugal. Subsequently, 

on the same date, Oi subscribed and realised a share capital increase of the Company 

amounting to Euro 1,250,000,000 and as a result the Company’s share capital increased from 

Euro 2,200,000,000 to Euro 3,450,000,000, and is represented by 50,000 shares with a nominal 

value of Euro 69,000 each. 

 

13.2. Other changes in Shareholder’s equity 

This caption corresponds to paid-in capital contributions, which do not bear interest and have no 

maturity. 
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company repaid paid-in capital contributions 

amounting to Euro 2,100,000,000 and as a result the outstanding amount due to PT SGPS on 

31 December 2013 amounted to Euro 3,206,050,000. 

On 5 May 2014, in connection with the Portugal Telecom Group reorganization and prior to Oi’s 

share capital increase, PT Portugal repaid to Portugal Telecom paid-in capital contributions 

amounting to Euro 2.895.109.518, reducing the outstanding balance to Euro 310,940,482 that is 

due to Oi in 31 December 2014. 

 

13.3. Legal reserve 

Portuguese law provides that at least 5% of each annual profits must be appropriated to a legal 

reserve until this reserve equals the minimum requirement of 20% of share capital. This reserve 

is not available for distribution to shareholders but may be capitalized or used to absorb losses, 

once all other reserves and retained earnings have been exhausted.  As at 31 December 2014 

and 2013, the legal reserve amounted to Euro 10,000. 

 

13.4. Adjustments to financial assets 

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the movements in this caption were as 

follows: 

 

(a) The negative currency translation adjustments recorded in 2013, through the equity method of accounting, reflect 

primarily the impact of the depreciation of the Brazilian Real against the Euro in Oi’s investment, which was held directly 

by Bratel Brasil since 31 March 2011. The positive currency translation adjustments recorded in 2014 include (1) a gain 

amounting to Euro 151 million reflecting primarily the impact of the appreciation of the Brazilian Real against the Euro on 

Oi’s investment, held until 2 May 2014, and (2) an amount of Euro 1,000 million corresponding to the transfer to net 

income of the accumulated amount of negative foreign currency translation adjustments related to the investment in 

Bratel Brasil, following the sale of Bratel BV (a company that held investment in Bratel Brasil) completed on 2 May 2014. 

Other changes in shareholders’ equity resulting from the application of the equity method accounting include mainly net 

actuarial losses recognized by Meo Comunicações related to its post retirement benefit obligations (Euro 209 million in 

2014 and Euro 140 million in 2013, both net of taxes), and other changes in shareholder’s equity of other subsidiaries. 

(b) These movements relate to the realization of the revaluation reserve by Meo Comunicações. 

(c) This caption includes unpaid profits of subsidiaries and the effect of realization of revaluation reserve by Meo 

Comunicações, both recorded against retained earnings. 

 

 

Euro

Unpa id divide nds

Curre nc y 
tra nsla tion 

a djustme nts

Othe r c ha nge s in 
sha re holde rs' 

e quity Tota l

Ba la nc e  a s a t 1 Ja nua ry 2 0 13  (Re sta te d) -  (5 8 1,5 4 2 ,7 0 5 ) 18 0 ,3 3 7 ,9 7 9  (4 0 1,2 0 4 ,7 2 6 )

Equity method (Note 7) (a) -  (538,855,479) (109,712,549) (6 4 8 ,5 6 8 ,0 2 8 )

Transfer to retained earnings (b) -  -  (21,016,021) (2 1,0 16 ,0 2 1)

Ba la nc e  a s a t 3 1 De c e mbe r 2 0 13  (Re sta te d) -  (1,12 0 ,3 9 8 ,18 4 ) 4 9 ,6 0 9 ,4 0 9  (1,0 7 0 ,7 8 8 ,7 7 5 )

Equity method (Note 7) (a) -  1,151,256,572 (218,036,833) 9 3 3 ,2 19 ,7 4 0  

Transfer to retained earnings (c) 8,046,449 -  (30,574,359) (2 2 ,5 2 7 ,9 10 )

Ba la nc e  a s a t 3 1 De c e mbe r 2 0 14 8 ,0 4 6 ,4 4 9  3 0 ,8 5 8 ,3 8 8  (19 9 ,0 0 1,7 8 3 ) (16 0 ,0 9 6 ,9 4 5 )
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13.5. Application of earnings 

In 2014 and 2013, as approved by Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the results for the 

years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 were fully transferred to retained earnings. 

 

14. Provisions  

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the movements in provisions were as 

follows: 

 

 

15. Loans obtained 

Loans obtained as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 have the following composition: 

 

15.1. Commercial paper  

a) External 

As at 25 June 1999, Portugal Telecom issued a commercial paper program, of which the 

Company became part since December 2010. This program was subject to several changes, 

and had a maximum amount of Euro 4,400,000,000 as at 31 December 2014. This program is 

in place until 7 July 2015, and is automatically renewable for successive periods of two years, 

until 7 July 2025, unless terminated by either party. As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, 

emissions made by the Company under this program amounted to Euro 2,490,050,000 and 

Euro 1,213,050,000, respectively.  

  

Euro

20 14

Taxe s

Nega tive  
fina nc ia l 

inve stme nts Tota l

Increases 909,812 -  9 09 ,8 12  

Transfers (Notes 7 and 8) -  203,391,465 20 3 ,3 91,46 5  

Closing ba la nc e 90 9 ,8 12  2 03 ,3 9 1,4 65  20 4 ,3 01,27 7  

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Non- c urre nt Curre nt Non- c urre nt Curre nt

Commercial paper 3,490,150,000 1,756,400,000 1,737,950,000 -  

External 3,490,150,000 1,360,150,000 1,737,950,000 

Internal -  396,250,000 -  

Bonds 2,966,000,000 -  -  -  

Bank loans 440,714,286 25,357,143 -  -  

Intercompany loans -  -  1,806,200,000 -  

Centralised cash management -  -  -  90,783,928 

6 ,8 9 6 ,8 6 4 ,2 8 6  1,7 8 1,7 5 7 ,14 3  3 ,5 4 4 ,15 0 ,0 0 0  9 0 ,7 8 3 ,9 2 8  
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As at 1 June 2000, Portugal Telecom issued another commercial paper program, of which the 

Company became part since December 2010. This program was subject to several changes 

and had a maximum amount of Euro 3,000,000,000 as at 31 December 2014. This program is 

in place until 1 June 2016, and is automatically renewable for successive periods of two years, 

until 1 June 2020, unless terminated by either party. As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, 

emissions made by the Company under this program amounted to Euro 2,360,250,000 and 

Euro 524,900,000 respectively. 

 

b) Internal 

On 16 April 2014, PT Portugal entered into a new commercial paper programme with a 

maximum underwritten amount of Euro 200,000,000, maturing on 16 April 2017. On 5 May 

2014, under the Portugal Telecom Group reorganization, PT Portugal replaced Portugal 

Telecom in the following commercial paper programmes: (i) a programme entered into by 

Portugal Telecom in 2007 and maturing on 11 May 2015, with a maximum amount of Euro 

300,000,000, of which Euro 200,000,000 is underwritten; and (ii) a programme entered into by 

Portugal Telecom in 2013 and maturing on 8 January 2016, with a maximum amount of Euro 

400,000,000, of which Euro 200,000,000 is underwritten.   

Under the changes made to the programmes in previous years, PT Portugal, PT Comunicações 

and Meo, S.A. also became issuers under both programmes. As from 5 May 2014, Portugal 

Telecom is no longer part of these programmes. 

As at 31 December 2014, PT Portugal had issued a total amount of Euro 396,250,000, maturing 

between January and February 2015. In addition, as at 31 December 2014, PT Portugal had 

available under these commercial paper programmes an underwritten amount of Euro 

248,750,000. 

 

15.2. Bonds 

As at 31 December 2014, this caption includes bonds issued by the Company and subscribed 

by PT Finance amounting to Euro 2,566,000,000 (Note 4) and a Public Bond Subscription 

Offering in the Portuguese market for the general public amounting to Euro 400,000,000, which 

was issued by Portugal Telecom  and transferred to PT Portugal on 5 May 2014, under the 

corporate reorganization of Portugal Telecom Group and following the approval by the 

bondholders at the Bondholders General Meeting held on 18 March 2014. These bonds have 

maturity in July 2016 and bear interest at a fixed rate of 6.25% per year, to be paid semi-

annually. 
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15.3. Bank loans 

As at 31 December 2014, bank loans amounted to Euro 466,071,429 and relate to loans 

obtained from the European Investment Bank (“EIB”). These loans were initially entered into by 

Portugal Telecom in previous years, and were transferred to PT Portugal on 5 May 2014, for an 

amount of Euro 527 million (Note 4), as part of the corporate reorganisation of Portugal Telecom 

Group. After 5 May 2014, PT Portugal repaid a portion of these loans amounting to Euro 61 

million (Note 4).  

 

15.4. Intercompany loans 

As at 31 December 2013, this caption includes loans obtained from Portugal Telecom, 

amounting to Euro 1,806,200,000 (Note 4), which were settled in 2014 prior to Oi’s share capital 

increase. 

 

15.5. Centralised cash management 

Portugal Telecom implemented in previous years a centralised management model for all 

receipts and payments of Group companies located in Portugal. The financing obtained by the 

Company under this centralized cash management system amounted to Euro 90,783,928 (Note 

4) on 31 December 2013. 

On 5 May 2014, in connection with the corporate reorganisation of Portugal Telecom Group, PT 

Portugal settled its outstanding amounts and replaced Portugal Telecom in the centralised 

management function of all cash receipts and payments of Group companies located in 

Portugal. 

 

15.6. Maturity of non-current debt 

As at 31 December 2014, medium and long-term debt matured on the following years: 

 

   

Euro

2016 3,560,350,000 

2017 534,564,286 

2018 837,350,000 

2019 405,000,000 

2020 992,050,000 

2021 75,000,000 

2025 492,550,000 

6 ,8 9 6 ,8 6 4 ,2 8 6  
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15.7. Financial covenants 

On 31 December 2014, PT Portugal and group companies have certain bank credit lines that 

require the compliance with certain financial covenants regarding the group resulting from the 

business combination between Portugal Telecom and Oi. These financial covenants, evaluated 

on a quarterly basis, require that Consolidated Gross Debt does not exceed four times 

consolidated EBITDA. 

In addition, the group financings include, among others, certain terms that originate contractual 

penalties in the event of a change in control of PT Portugal, PT Finance and/or Oi, the disposal 

of a large portion of assets, the loss of control of relevant subsidiaries, not complying with other 

financing agreements and entering into guarantees over the assets of group’ companies. 

Applicable penalties when such events occur, or when financial covenants are not complied 

with, include basically the early repayment of loans obtained or the cancellation of available 

credit lines. 

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had complied with the financial covenants directly 

related to PT Portugal. 

 

16. Accrued expenses 

The detail of this caption as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows: 

 

(a) As at 31 December 2014, the balance of this caption includes interest related to financings obtained through 

commercial paper programmes, bonds and bank loans (Note 15). As at 31 December 2013, the balance of this 

caption included accrued interest related to the intercompany loans obtained from PT SGPS (Notes 8 and 15) 

and external commercial paper programmes.  

(b) This caption includes the estimate of vacation pay, vacation subsidy, variable remunerations and other 

compensation payable to board members. 

  

   

Euro

2 014 2 013

Interest and other financial expenses (a) 25,402,711 43,499,384 

Personnel costs (b) 4,704,140 5,601,128 

Specialized work 637,500 -  

Other 127,494 -  

3 0 ,8 7 1,84 5  49 ,10 0 ,5 12  
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17. Equity in earnings/(losses) of affiliated companies 

The detail of this caption as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows: 

 

 

In the years ended in 31 December 2014 and 2013, gains and losses in affiliated companies, 

resulting from the application of the equity method of accounting are as follows: 

 
(a) In the year ended 31 December  2014, losses recorded by Meo Communicações reflect primarily (1) the loss of Euro 950 million 

(Note 1) recorded by its subsidiary PT Móveis in connection with the sale to Portugal Telecom of the 100% interest in Bratel BV, 

which owned indirectly investment in Oi, and (2) an impairment loss of Euro 867 million (Note 6) recorded to adjust the carrying 

value of the net assets of Meo Communicações to the corresponding recoverable amount based on the Altice offer for the 

acquisition from Oi of the Company’s domestic businesses (Note 1). 

(b) As refered above, these companies were acquired during the year 2014. 

(c) Losses recorded by PT Finance include a loss amounted to Euro 402,410,957 (Notes 4.f and 8) recorded in order to reflect the 

devaluation of the investments in Rio Forte for the corresponding fair value (Note 4.f). 

  

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Re sta te d

Ga ins a nd losse s in a ffilia te d c ompa nie s -  e quity me thod

Gains 32,682,256 38,133,505 

Losses (2,563,583,718) (314,844,157)
Ga ins a nd losse s on the  disposa l of a ffilia te d c ompa nie s

Recognition of deferred capital gains (Notes 12) 27,130,698 135,797,278 

(2 ,5 0 3 ,7 7 0 ,7 6 4 ) (14 0 ,9 13 ,3 7 4 )

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Re sta te d

Meo Comunicações (a) (2,129,843,624) (304,450,156)

PT Inovação e Sistemas 6,465,574 9,084,817 

PT Cloud e Data Centers 8,820,362 (2,441,762)

PT Contact 4,414,741 5,259,958 

PT Pro 1,035,266 23,701,674 

PT Sales 14,610 87,056 

PT Data Center (12,160,679) (7,765,049)

PT CC (b) 515,702 -  

PT Brasil (b) (1,618,651) -  

PT Investimentos (b) 3,508,359 -  

PT Finance (b) (c) (418,542,384) -  

PT Pay (1,418,380) (383,109)

Previsão 3,900 195,919 

(2 ,5 3 8 ,8 0 5 ,2 0 4 ) (2 7 6 ,7 10 ,6 5 2 )

Ga in re sulting from the  ta x c onsolida tion re gime  (Note  9 ) 7 ,9 0 3 ,7 4 2  -  

(2 ,5 3 0 ,9 0 1,4 6 2 ) (2 7 6 ,7 10 ,6 5 2 )
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18. Supplies and external services 

The detail of this caption in the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows: 

 

 

19. Taxes and fees 

The detail of this caption in the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows: 

 

  

20. Other expenses and losses 

As at 31 December 2014, other expenses and losses, amounting to Euro 119,346,498, include 

primarily (1) a loss of Euro 114,523,595 (Note 4.f) related to the devaluation of investment in Rio 

Forte to the corresponding fair value, and (2) a loss of Euro 4,810,766 (Note 7) related to the 

acquisition of PT Finance. 

 

21. Interest and related income/expenses 

The detail of this caption in the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows: 

 

 

 
 

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Support services 3,212,902 178,995 

Specialized work 1,354,342 -  

Travelling 595,800 -  

Commissions 13,082 -  

Fees 4,500 -  

Other 12,507 80,292 

5 ,19 3 ,13 3  2 5 9 ,2 8 7  

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Stamps tax 2,013,280 -  

Other 904,898 71,677 

Other taxes 10,205 8,348 

2 ,9 2 8 ,3 8 3  8 0 ,0 2 5  

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Inte re st a nd re la te d inc ome

Interest income (a) 272,795,340 188,678,968 

2 7 2 ,7 9 5 ,3 4 0  18 8 ,6 7 8 ,9 6 8  

Inte re st a nd re la te d e xpe nse s

Interest expense (a) 274,680,062 172,516,896 

Bank commissions and other bank expenses (b) 14,567,578 614,273 

Unfavourable exchange rate differences 9 -  

Other 388,425 27,031 

2 8 9 ,6 3 6 ,0 7 4  17 3 ,15 8 ,2 0 0  
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(a) The detail of interest income and expense in 2014 and 2013 is as follows: 

  

In 2014, the increase in net interest expenses reflects mainly the transfer of financings (Note 15) from Portugal 

Telecom to PT Portugal, including commercial paper, bonds and bank loans, an effect that was partially offset by 

higher interest obtained under financings granted to Group companies 

(b) This caption reflects primarily guarantees and fees incurred in connection with the transfer of financings from 

Portugal Telecom to PT Portugal. 

 

22. Earnings per share 

Earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 were computed as 

follows: 

   

There are no situations that result in a dilution effect, so diluted earnings per share are equal to 

basic earnings per share. 

 

23. Guarantees  

As at 31 December 2014, the Company presented guarantees to third parties, as follows: 

  

(a) These bank guarantees were presented by PT Portugal to the European Investment Bank in connection with the 

loans obtained from this bank (Note 15.3). 
(b) In accordance with Portuguese tax legislation, the Company has presented these guarantees and submitted a claim 

or an appeal to the tax authorities in order to be able to hold open discussions with the tax authorities and avoid the 

payment of a given tax assessment. In Portugal, these two conditions are required and must be complied with 

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Inte re st inc ome

Intercompany loans 269,741,753 188,678,968 

Short- term investments 1,530,114 -  

Bank deposits 275,671 -  

Other 1,247,802 -  

2 7 2 ,7 9 5 ,3 4 0  18 8 ,6 7 8 ,9 6 8  

Inte re st e xpe nse

Intercompany loans 34,402,794 83,904,796 

Commercial paper and bank loans 198,780,575 88,612,100 

Bonds 41,496,693 -  

2 7 4 ,6 8 0 ,0 6 2  17 2 ,5 16 ,8 9 6  

Euro

2 0 14 2 0 13

Net income (2,579,563,799) (132,933,962)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 50,000 50,000 

Ea rnings pe r sha re (5 1,5 9 1) (2 ,6 5 9 )

Euro

2 0 14  

Bank guarantees presented by PT Portugal to EIB (i) 470,700,505 

Bank and other guarantees presented by PT Portugal to courts and tax authorities (ii) 7,261,548 

Tota l 4 7 7 ,9 6 4 ,0 6 7  
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before the process can continue, regardless of the amount of the tax assessment or the likelihood of success of the 

appeal or the claim. 

 

24. Events occurred after the balance sheet date 

As a result of the depreciation of the shares of Oi since 31 December 2014, the recoverable 

amount of the investment in debt securities of Rio Forte based on the quote of Oi shares 

amounted to Euro 264 million as at 20 March 2015, a reduction of Euro 124 million compared to 

31 December 2014, considering the securities held by both the Company and PT Finance (Note 

4.f). 

On 4 March 2015, CVM approved the exchange agreement and the call option agreement on Oi 

shares entered into with PT SGPS in connection with the investment in Rio Forte debt securities 

(Note 4.f). However, this approval depends on the approval of both agreements at the 

Shareholders General Meeting of Oi to be held on 26 March 2015. 
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SUPERVISORY BOARD’S REPORT AND OPINION 

(STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS) 

2014 FINANCIAL YEAR 

(Free translation into English from the original document issued in Portuguese. In case of doubt or misinterpretation 

the Portuguese version will prevail) 

 

 

To the Shareholders, 

In accordance with the mandate assigned to us and the legislation in force, namely Article 420 

(1) (a) of the Companies Commercial Code, as well as the Company’s statutory articles of 

association, we hereby present our report on the supervisory activity we carried on since we 

were elected, and give our opinion on the Management Report, the standalone financial 

statements and the proposed allocation of year end results presented by the Board of 

Directors of PT PORTUGAL, SGPS, S.A., with respect to the year ended 31 December 2014. 

INICIAL STATEMENT 

This Supervisory Board was elected at the General Assembly held on 28 November 2014 to 

complete the mandate 2012-2014. Consequently, our activity during the year of 2014 did not 

include some of the legal and statutory duties assigned to us, namely (a) we did not 

accompanied the Company’s activity during the first eleven months of the year, (b) we did not 

report on the 2015 Company’s budget and (c) we did not make any proposal for the 

appointment of the Independent Auditor witch was also elected in the aforementioned 

General Assembly held on 28 November 2014. 

Under these circumstances, our supervisory activity was focused mostly on obtaining an 

understanding and make the monitoring of the financial statements closing process. 

Nevertheless, since the aforementioned date, we had the opportunity to hold several 

meetings with the Board of Directors, the Company’s departments and the Statutory 

/Independent Auditor in order to obtain and evaluate the internal control systems and 

business risks, and to understand and evaluate the effects of the most relevant business 

transactions made by the Company which we summarise below. 
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ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKING 

Under the legal and statutory competencies and the related Supervisory Board rules, all the 

Supervisory Board members have attended several meetings and have taken further actions, 

which are dully summarised in the respective minute’s book. The following is a summary of the 

most relevant meetings: 

 Meetings with the Board of Directors aiming to obtain an understanding and knowledge of 

the businesses evolution in general and, particularly, the effects on the financial 

statements of the transactions undertaken during the year between related parties 

following the business arrangements agreed between the sole shareholder Oi, S.A. and the 

Companies Altice, S.A. and Altice Portugal, S.A., which are detailed in the Management 

Report and the notes to the financial statements. 

 Meetings with the Internal Audit Department with the objective of having knowledge of 

the planned works and actions to be carried on during the year and accompanying the 

work done and the conclusion reached based on such work which included the companies, 

processes and applications they have selected for testing. 

 Meetings with Accounting, Reporting and Taxation Department to assess the regular 

process of the accounting books and records, the appropriate and consistent application of 

the accounting principles and policies under the applicable accounting framework, and the 

most relevant accounting effects of the transactions made and the financial statements 

closing process. 

 Meetings with the Statutory / Independent Auditor to accompany the audit works carried 

on and the conclusions reached and to discuss the most relevant audit issues and the 

related draft audit report. 

NON RECURRING EVENTS 

As it is dully reported in detail in the Management Report and the notes to the consolidated 

financial statements, a series of transactions have occurred during the financial year of 2014 

which the Supervisory Board considers should be highlighted given its relevance and impact in 

the financial statements of PT Portugal, SGPS, S.A.: 

 Acquisition by PT Portugal, SGPS, S.A. to Portugal Telecom, SGPS, S.A. of the total shares 

of the companies PT - Centro Corporativo, S.A.,  Portugal Telecom  Investimentos, S.A., 

Portugal Telecom International Finance, B.V. and Portugal Telecom Brasil, S.A.. 
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 Sale by the undertaken PT Móveis – Serviços de Telecomunicações, SGPS, S.A., to  

Portugal Telecom, SGPS, S.A. of BRATEL, BV (an holding company that holds the 

investment in Oi, S.A. and in CONTAX). 

 Acquisition by PT Móveis – Serviços de Telecomunicações, SGPS, S.A. of PT Participações, 

SGPS, S.A.. At the date of this acquisition the main asset of PT Participações, SGPS, S.A. 

was an indirect interest of 18,75% in the share capital of UNITEL, S.A. (a company under 

the Angolan law). 

 Transfer of other assets and liabilities (loans) from Portugal Telecom, SGPS, S.A. to PT 

Portugal, S.A. and reimbursement by the later to Portugal Telecom, SGPS, S.A. of 

supplementary capital. 

OTHER RELEVANT EVENTS 

At the date of this report, and as it is also dully reported in detail in the Management Report 

and the notes to the financial statements, the following operations are pending approval: 

 The execution of the contract to exchange Rioforte, S.A. debt securities for Oi, S.A. 

ordinary and preferred shares, which is pending decision from the General Assembly of Oi, 

S.A. to be held on 26 March 2015. 

 The conclusion of the process of the sale of PT Portugal, SGPS, S.A. to ALTICE, S.A. is 

pending decision from regulators. 

LOSS OF HALF OF SHARE CAPITAL 

As a consequence of the losses incurred in the 2014 financial year, in the amount of € 2.579 

million, the Company’s equity as at 31 December 2014 (€ 1.197 million) became less than half 

of the share capital (€ 3.450 million). In compliance with Article 35 (3) of the Companies 

Commercial Code the shareholders shall decide on the measures deemed appropriate in the 

circumstances. 

OPINION ON THE MANAGEMENT REPORT, STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE 

PROPOSED ALLOCATION OF YEAR END RESULTS 

We consider that the Management Report and the standalone financial statements for the 

year ended 31 December 2014, read as a whole, explain with sufficient detail and clarity the 

evolution of businesses, the financial position and performance and the cash flows in 
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compliance with the requirements of the law and the Company’s statutory articles of 

association. 

Accordingly, taking into consideration the activities carried on by the Supervisory Board as well 

as the conclusions set out in the auditor’s report issued by the Statutory / Independent 

Auditor, with which we agree, we are of the opinion that: 

(a) The Management Report should be approved; 

(b) The financial statements should be approved (balance sheet, income statement, statement 

of changes in shareholders’ equity, statement of cash flows and notes to the standalone 

financial statements); 

(c) The proposed allocation of 2014 year end results should be approved. 

Lastly, the Supervisory Board wish to express its gratitude to the Board of Directors, the 

Statutory /Independent Auditor, and the Company’s services directors for all the cooperation 

and assistance given to our work. 

Lisboa, 26 March 2015 

 

  
Vitor Manuel Ferreira Lúcio da Silva (President) 

 

 

  
José Manuel Gonçalves de Morais Cabral (Member) 
 
 
 
 

  
Óscar Manuel Machado Figueiredo (Member) 
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